Public Document Pack

gy .
Hampshire

<) County Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting Executive Lead Member for Children’s Services and Young
People Decision Day

Date and Time Wednesday, 8th July, 2020 at 2.00 pm
Place Virtual Teams Meeting - Microsoft Teams
Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk

John Coughlan CBE

Chief Executive
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ

FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION
This meeting will be broadcast on the County Council website

AGENDA
DEPUTATIONS
To receive any deputations notified under Standing Order 12.
KEY DECISIONS (NON-EXEMPT/NON-CONFIDENTIAL)
None
NON KEY DECISIONS (NON-EXEMPT/NON-CONFIDENTIAL)

1.  PROPOSED CHANGES TO POST 16 TRANSPORT POLICY
STATEMENT 2020 (Pages 3 - 126)

To consider a report of the Director of Children’s Services seeking
approval for changes to the Post 16 Transport Policy Statement 2020.

KEY DECISIONS (EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL)
None
NON KEY DECISIONS (EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL)

None



ABOUT THIS AGENDA:

On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages.



Agenda ltem 1

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Decision Report

Executive Lead Member for Children's Services and Young

Decision Maker
People

Title Proposed Changes to Post 16 Transport Policy Statement

2020
Date 8 July 2020
Report From Steve Crocker, Director of Children’s Services

Contact: Martin Goff (Head of Transport and Admissions)
Tel: 01962 846185 Email: martin.goff@hants.gov.uk

Purpose of this Report.

1. The purpose of this report is to finalise the County Council’'s 2020 Post 16
Transport Policy Statement (the Policy). The Policy was originally
determined on 27 May 2020. However, following receipt of a pre-action
protocol letter, it was thought advisable to withdraw the Policy and
reconsider certain matters. The Policy has now been reviewed and
amended and is being presented for approval to the Executive Lead
Member for Children’s Services and Young People.

Recommendations

2. That the Executive Lead Member for Children’s Services and Young
People approves the attached 2020 Post 16 Transport Policy Statement
(Appendix D) which incorporates the following changes after review of the
27 May determined Policy:

a. Improved clarity for how the County Council will consider applications
for young persons under 18 years of age, those aged 18 and those 19
years of age and older (and considered under the adult duty).

b. Confirmation that the County Council will provide transport support
necessary to facilitate the attendance of young people of sixth form age
and with an Education Health and Care Plan (EHCP) aged 19 and over
who are in education or training.

c. Where the young person is aged under 18, the expectation of the
County Council is that parents or carers will be responsible for
transporting their child. The public consultation undertaken to inform
the Policy sought comments on specific circumstances which the

Page 3



County Council considered were not exceptional and would not usually
require the provision of transport. Upon further consideration, the
Council concluded that this proposed approach was potentially
confusing and did not accurately detail the Council’s intended
approach. The Policy has now been amended to remove any reference
to exceptional circumstances in this context. The amended Policy
states that it is the Council’'s expectation that parents/carers of this
cohort will transport their children to their school and that, therefore, it
will usually not be necessary for the Council to provide transport.
However, the Policy now makes it clear that necessity for transport
assistance will be assessed by considering all cases on their individual
facts.

3. That the Executive Lead Member for Children’s Services and Young
People notes that the review led to the following amendments to the
processes supporting the decision-making process:

a. An updated Equality Impact Assessment (Appendix C);

b. A reduction in the identified savings target following analysis of the
composition of the cohort using the Post 16 transport service and
where savings may be delivered as a result of the Policy

c. The further consideration around the outcomes of the public
consultation, and how the Policy requires consideration of individual
circumstances.

Executive Summary

4. The proposed 2020 Policy Statement sought to clarify the circumstances
which the County Council considered were not exceptional and, therefore,
would not automatically warrant transport being provided. A public
consultation on the proposed policy statement ran from January 2020 until
April 2020.

5. Changes were introduced into the proposed Post 16 Transport Policy
Statement for September 2020 determined on 27 May 2020. However, the
Council received a pre-action protocol letter (Appendix E) which argued
that the 27 May Policy Statement was unlawful on various grounds and the
Policy Statement was legally challenged. In the light of this letter it was
thought appropriate to withdraw the 27 May 2020 Policy Statement and
review it.

6. Based on the consultation responses and the pre-action protocol letter it
has been understood that the circumstances suggested by the 27 May
2020 Policy Statement would not to be exceptional (and therefore not likely
to lead to the provision of transport by the Council) may, in some cases,
make it necessary to provide transport assistance. Circumstances vary

Page 4



significantly between families and the number of applications is sufficiently
low to enable consideration on a case by case basis. Furthermore,
feedback from some respondents asked for the Policy Statement to be
clear and easy to understand, so changes have been made to address this
feedback.

The Post 16 Transport Policy Statement recommended for approval
provides details of the service available to eligible Post 16 learners and
enables Hampshire County Council to continue to meet its statutory
requirements.

Contextual Information

8.

10.

11.

This report presents the outcome of the annual public consultation on the
Post 16 Transport Policy that is required by statutory guidance. The
consultation particularly sought comments from schools, post-16 providers
and young people; responses have been taken into account when
proposing the content of the Policy Statement.

The changes proposed for the Post 16 Transport Policy Statement detail
the offer for sixth form age students and adult students with an Education
Health and Care Plan up to the age of 25. The proposed Policy Statement
explains that the County Council will provide local authority funded
transport, when it is necessary, to facilitate attendance. It also explains,
that where the young person is aged under 18, the expectation of the
County Council is that parents or carers will be responsible for transporting
their child, but individual circumstances of families will be considered when
making eligibility decisions.

If agreed, the changes would be incorporated into the Post 16 Transport
Policy Statement from September 2020. The Policy Statement is
determined annually. Parents and young adults make a new application
each year and eligibility for support is decided each academic year. The
newly determined policy statement will be used for all new applications for
assistance for the 2020/21 academic year.

Included within the proposed Policy Statement is updated wording in
relation to the rates of parental contribution, including how and when they
apply. The wording within the proposed Policy Statement provides a clear
explanation of current practice, including confirmation that families with low
income (but not in receipt of named benefits) or with exceptional
circumstances may apply for a discretionary waiver or a reduction in
charge and each application will be assessed based on its own merit and
evidence.

Page 5



12.1n 2018 the Policy Statement was modified to reduce local authority funded
provision so that transport was provided only when necessary to facilitate
attendance. The amended Policy Statement was promoted as one of a
number of measures seeking to reduce costs in providing transport
services. In the summer of 2018 that change had only a small impact on
provision. In the summer of 2019 (the policy largely being carried forward
from 2018) the approach led to a legal challenge as implementing the new
Policy Statement relied on published information in the application process
that was not included in the Policy Statement. Following advice, the County
Council reverted to its previous approach. The proposed 2020 Policy
provides a clearer policy position.

13.There are proposed revenue budget savings arising from to these changes.
Other projects endeavouring to reduce costs include: the use of school
minibuses for home to school transport; major procurement exercises
looking at sole provider tendering, route ‘bundling’ and longer term
contracts; and restructuring the home to school transport team and its use
of technology.

14.The Policy Statement recommended for approval enables Hampshire
County Council to continue to meet its statutory requirements.

Finance

15. Current expenditure on the home to school transport service is
approximately £32million, of which £1.3million was spent on Post 16
transport assistance. The Children’s Services departmental transformation
2021 programme has an approved target of £3million of savings from this
budget.

16.The 27 May decision paper referenced possible savings of £680k in
establishing the Policy. These potential savings were highlighted in the
consultation exercises which helped to influence the 2018 and 2019 Post
16 Home to School Transport Policies.

17.Further analysis of the Post 16 cohort and the impact of the proposed
policy changes led to a revised saving estimate of £170k. This is based on
the potential for 30% of an estimated 128 Year 12 local authority funded
travellers no longer receiving transport because their parents/carers are
able to transport them and an average cost (using 2019/2020 actual costs)
for transporting a Post 16 student of £4,864 per annum. However, this is
an estimate and the savings may, depending on the particular
circumstances of the applicants, vary from this.

Page 6



Consultation and Equalities

18.The public consultation on the 2020/21 Post-16 Transport Policy Statement
ran from 13 January 2020 to 23 February 2020. Responses were invited by
completing a dedicated online survey.

19.There were 168 responses to the consultation, all of which have been
taken into consideration when compiling the statement for publication. A
summary of the key consultation questions and responses is provided in
paragraphs 19 to 24. For the Post 16 Transport Policy Statement the
following questions were asked and responses received.

20.The proposals for changes to the Post 16 Transport Policy Statement
explained the expectation of the County Council that parents/carers
arrange transport for their child to their Post 16 education setting until they
become an adult. The consultation sought opinions on specific
circumstances which the County Council advised they did not consider to
constitute exceptional circumstances which would automatically render
transport necessary. The summary responses to that request are as
follows:

To what extent do you agree or disagree that the following circumstances would
not on theirown generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the young
person aged under 18 to transport?

Parents” and carers’ work hours not fitting in with public
service transport times or college times would not on its own
generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the young
person aged under 18 to transport

84

Parents” and carers’ child-care arrangements not fitting in with
public service transport times or college times would not on its
own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the
young person aged under 18 to transport

86

Parents and carers needing to get other children to and from
school would not on its own generally be considered as 97
exceptional, entitling the young person aged under 18 to
transport

Having to use the family vehicle (including Mobility vehicle
provided for the student) for other purposes would not on its
own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the
young person aged under 18 to transport

79

Strongly disagree/Disagree Neither agree nor disagree B Agree/Strongly agree Don't know

Base size: 164 to 165 responses

21.None of the circumstances were agreed with by the majority of
respondents.

22.The highest level of disagreement (97 of the 164 responses) was with the

proposal that parents and carers who need to get other children to school
would not automatically entitle a young person under 18 to Post 16

Page 7



Transport.

23.The lowest level of disagreement (79 of 165 responses) was with the
proposal that needing to use the family vehicle for other reasons would not
automatically entitle a young person under 18 to Post 16 Transport.

24.Three unstructured responses were submitted (not using the Response
Form), comments included reference that the Easy Read consultation
document was hard to understand; that policies should be written in plain
English; that families on low income or in rural areas could be
disproportionately affected; that changes may make it harder for families
with children in multiple schools; that proposals, if agreed, could impact on
other services or on children and young people and their families; that
absenteeism could rise; that all cases should be reviewed on their
individual merits; and that the County Council should undertake impact
assessments to understand impacts at a local level.

25.Respondents were also asked to describe impacts of the proposed
changes, with 37 responses submitted. The three most common themes
are shown in the table below:

Impacts on parents | These comments mentioned that parents and carers may
and carers need to give up work; may need to change or reduce their
(26 mentions) working hours; may find themselves unemployable; could
suffer negative impacts their mental health; would need to
travel more to transport children to education, and could
struggle to get other children to school on time

Impacts on children | These comments mentioned that the proposed changes may
and young people prevent children and young people from attending Post 16
(20 mentions) education; may offer children and young people with Special
Educational Needs or Disabilities (SEND) fewer opportunities
than available to those without SEND; may restrict the choice
of colleges for children and young people with SEND; and
may create a barrier to education for children and young
people who are unable to take public transport independently

Impact on family These comments mentioned the financial impact on parents
finances and carers who may need to give up work and the financial
(11 mentions) impact of additional childcare that may be needed to support

families if the proposed changes to Post 16 Transport policy
were implemented

26.To augment the public consultation the County Council directly approached
21 Post-16 education providers to request their views on the consultation.

27.Six Post 16 education providers responded to the consultation. A summary

of the key consultation questions and responses is provided here. For the
Post-16 Transport Policy Statement, the following questions were asked

Page 8




and responses received. There was a small majority in agreement with all
the proposals.

To what extent do you agree or disagree that the
following would not normally be considered as
exceptional if they were the only circumstance being
presented?

a. Parents’ and carers’ work hours not _ 3

fitting in with public service transport...

b. Parents’ and carers’ child-care _ 3

arrangements not fitting in with...

c. Parents’ and carers’ needing to get _ 3

other children to and from school.

d. Having to use the family vehicle _ 3

(including Mobility vehicle provided...

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

M Stongly disagree/Disagree B Neither agree nor disagree

Agree/Strongly agree

28. Although some Post 16 education providers were of the opinion that if just
one of the circumstances were presented then transport should be
awarded, the majority believed this should not be the case. Of those
education providers in agreement with the proposal, the overall response
was that these circumstances should be taken into consideration, but along
with any other circumstances being presented on a case by case basis.

29.Post 16 education providers were also asked to describe the transport
needs of students attending their education provision and how efficiencies
and savings could be generated by working together with the County
Council. A summary of the feedback from the six education providers is as

follows:
Q2 — The Post 16 Transport Policy These responses mentioned that
Statement has focused the Council’s Hampshire County Council transport
support on students with Learning provision would benefit learners if it
Difficulties and Disabilities (LDD) was arranged to reflect individual study
students, usually they have an EHCP. | timetables. For some learners, if
Please provide any comments on their | County Council support wasn't

Page 9



transport needs when attending your
setting.

available for transport then they would
not be able to attend their study
programme.

For other learners travelling
independently on public transport may
not be appropriate given the distance
they travel and/or their personal safety
due to their additional needs and social
vulnerabilities.

With more young learners using public
transport this has resulted in extra
support being provided by the Post 16
education provider. County Council
provided Transport is a vital service for
many young people.

Q3 — The cohort of students aged over
19 for whom the Children’s Services
Department provides transport is
increasing in numbers. Please provide
any comments on their transport
needs, if different from above, when
attending your setting.

The needs of learners over the age of
19 is the same as those 18 years and
younger and any support continues to
reflect their individual needs. Education
providers do offer travel training, but
this is not appropriate for everyone.

Q4 - The forecast growth in the Post
16 sector, particularly over 19
students, is bringing unprecedented
pressure on the service and its
budget. Do you have any comments
on how providers and the County
Council can work together to generate
efficiencies and savings for both
providers and the service?

Improve co-ordination of transport,
increasing vehicle size and number of
passengers transported on each route
where necessary/possible. The County
Council could provide comprehensive
travel training whilst young people are
at school, so when they reach Post 16
education some may be able to travel
independently, improvements are
needed to ensure this is both robust
and delivers positive outcomes.

30.As is evident in the Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) (Appendix D), there
is likely potential adverse impact on individuals’ with the protected
characteristics of age and, disability and rurality if some or all of the
changes to the Policy Statement are approved. The EIA highlights the
possible scale of impact for the age groups that may be affected. With
respect to age and disability, when a child/young person is refused
transport under the Policy Statement there is an opportunity for this

decision to be appealed.

31.To mitigate the impact of the proposed changes to the Policy Statement,
taking into consideration feedback from the consultation, it is evident that
individual circumstances should be considered by the County Council on a
case by case basis, and transport provided where evidence clearly

Page 10




indicates that it is necessary in order to facilitate attendance at the young
person’s education placement or training.

The Pre-action Protocol letter

32.Appendix E is a pre-action protocol letter sent in response to the 27 May
2020 Policy. This letter raises eight grounds of challenge. The
amendments made to the May 2020 Policy and the EIA meet the various
criticisms made therein. Two grounds concern an alleged failure to have
regard to certain statutory provisions. As the decision maker is aware, she
is required to have regard to the various matters set out in section 509AB
Education Act 1996 when considering what transport arrangements are
necessary. Further, section 11 of the Children Act 2004 requires the
Council, when considering whether to adopt the proposed Policy “to make
arrangements for ensuring that their functions are discharged having
regard to the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children”. The
amendments to the Policy mean that the welfare of children is safeguarded
and promoted. The decision-maker is asked to consider the pre-action
protocol letter in full.

Conclusion

33.The proposed Policy Statement will aid parents/carers and users of the
service to understand the service available and who may be entitled to
support.
Supporting information

Public Consultation Findings & Analysis — Appendix A

Education Provider Consultation Findings & Analysis — Appendix B

Equality Assessment — Appendix C

Proposed Post 16 Transport Policy Statement — Appendix D

The pre-action protocol letter of 2 June 2020 — Appendix E

Page 11



REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:

Links to the Strategic Plan

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic | Yes
growth and prosperity:

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent | Yes
lives:

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse No
environment:
People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, Yes

inclusive communities:

Other Significant Links

Links to previous Member decisions:

Title Date
Proposed Changes to the Home to School Transport Policy | 18 March 2020

(2021)

Direct links to specific legislation or Government Directives

Title Date
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/sy | January 2019
stem/uploads/attachment_data/file/772913/Post16_transport g

uidance.pdf

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents

The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in
the Act.)

Document Location
None

Page 12


https://democracy.hants.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=704&MId=6311
https://democracy.hants.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=704&MId=6311
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/772913/Post16_transport_guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/772913/Post16_transport_guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/772913/Post16_transport_guidance.pdf

1.

2.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:

Equality Duty

The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the Act’) to
have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:

Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct
prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected characteristics as set out in
section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual
orientation);

Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation) and
those who do not share it;

Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who do not share it.

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:

- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a

relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;

- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic

that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;

- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public

life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionally
low.

Equalities Impact Assessment:

Equalities Impact Assessment: Appendix

Page 13



Appendix A

Consultation on proposed changes to the
Home to School Transport Policy and
Post-16 Transport Policy

Findings Report

March 2020

»¥ Hampshire

@ County Council www.hants.gov.uk




Contents

INEFOAUCTION ... 4
(0] o] (=) 4 PP 4
(@] g 15101 r= 140 4 1= 14 5
Responses to the CONSUIALION ............uiiiiiieiiiie e e e e e e eennns 6
LAY o N (==Y oo o =0 1 6
Findings from the CONSURALION..............oiiiiiiiii e e 7
Summary of Key FINAINGS .....coooiiiiiiiiiiiee et 7
Analysis of cONSUltatioN rFESPONSES .......ccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e 8
Proposed changes to the Home to School Transport Policy ..............cceevvvvvivnnnnnn. 8

Using the nearest available entrance from the child’s home to the school
grounds for distance CalCulatioNS...............uuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiis 9

Using the nearest available road route, passable for a suitable motorised vehicle,
for distance CalCUIAtiONS...........uuiiiii e 11

To not remove school transport from children attending a non-catchment school
if a place at their catchment school, or a school closer to their home, becomes

oY= 11 = L] = 13
Changing the administration of how appeals are processed...........ccccccceeeeeennn.e. 15
Suggested changes to the Home to School Transport Policy ...........cccccceeeeeee.. 18
Proposed changes to the Post-16 Transport PoOliCy ...........cooovviiiiiiiiieiieeeiiinn, 20

Parents’ and carers’ work hours not fitting in with public service transport times
(o] g ole] | [=To =0 11 14 1o 21

Parents’ and carers’ child-care arrangements not fitting in with public service
transport times or college tiMes ... 23

Parents and carers of Post-16 students with SEND needing to get other children
t0 @Nd frOM SCNOOI ... e e e e e eeeees 25

Parents and carers of Post-16 students with SEND having to use the family
vehicle (including Mobility vehicle provided for the student) for other purposes 27

Suggested changes to the Post-16 Transport POlIiCY ........cccccovviiiiiiiiiiiiceciii, 29
Impacts of the proposed Changes ... 31
Responses from organisations and groups using the Response Form............... 36
UNSETUCTUIEd FESPONSES ....cceeiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee ettt ettt ettt ettt e e e e e eeees 38
APPENAICES ..o 39
Appendix one — Research approach.........ccooceeviiiiiiiiiii e, 39
Appendix two — Interpreting the data ...........cccooeeeiiiieeiiiii e 40

2
Page 15



Appendix three — Consultation ReSpoNSe FOIrM............cceeiiieeeiiieiiiiiiiie e eeeeeeennns 41

Appendix four — List of organisations or groups who responded to the

(o0 g 1T U | 7= 1o o 1SR 50
Appendix five — Consultation participant profile .........ccccccoviiiiiie 51
Appendix six — Data Tables ... 53
Non-Easy Read response form data tables............cccooovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeceeeens 53
Easy Read response form data tables............ccccovviiiiiiiieciei e 69

3
Page 16



Introduction

Context

Between 13 January 2020 and 23 February 2020, Hampshire County Council ran a
public consultation seeking residents’ and stakeholders’ views on proposals to
update its Home to School Transport (HtST) and Post-16 (P16T) Transport policies.
Key findings from the consultation are set out on this report.

The County Council is seeking to update its HtST Policy to provide greater alignment
between the policy and existing practice, as well as to improve clarity for parents and
carers on the criteria used to reach decisions about HtST.

Local authorities are also required to consult on their P16T Policy Statement every
year. The County Council is proposing to update its P16T Policy Statement to set out
the responsibilities of parents and carers of children and young people who receive
P16T. It is anticipated that this update could result in potential savings to the County
Council of approximately £680,000 per year.

Any changes to these policies would only affect new applications for transport made
after the date of implementation.

4
Page 17



Consultation aims

The consultation sought to understand respondents’ views about, and the potential
impacts of, amending the HtST Policy to:

clarify that the distance from a child’s home to their school is calculated using
the nearest available entrance to the school grounds;

clarify that the route to a school is measured using the nearest available road
route, passable for a suitable motorised vehicle, when determining whether a
non-catchment school qualifies as a nearer school (if all of the routes to the
schools in question are beyond statutory walking distances);

clarify that school transport would not be removed from children attending a
non-catchment school if a place at their catchment school, or a school closer
to their home, becomes available; and

reflect a change in the administration of how appeals are processed.

The consultation also sought to understand respondents’ views about, and the
potential impacts of, updating the P16T Policy for 2020/21 to set out the
responsibilities of parents and carers of children and young people who receive

P16T.

Feedback received through this consultation will be considered alongside wider
evidence to inform the County Council’s decision on proposed changes to the HtST
and P16T Policies. This decision will be taken by the Executive Lead Member for
Children's Services and Young People.

The approach taken in the running and analysis of this consultation is described in
Appendices one and two.

5
Page 18



Responses to the consultation

Who responded?

There were 165 responses to the consultation questionnaire, all of which were
submitted online, which breaks down as follows:

= 160 were from individuals,
» four were from organisations or groups, and
= one did not indicate either way.

A copy of the consultation questionnaire is provided in Appendix three.

There were also three separate unstructured responses. Two were from
organisations and one from an individual. These responses are also included in this
report.

A list of the organisations or groups that took part in the consultation is provided in
Appendix four.

A detailed participant profile is provided in Appendix five.
Specific analysis was undertaken of the views of respondents from households:

e with children;

» that currently receive HtST or P16T provided by the County Council;

« with children with Special Educational Needs or Disabilities (SEND); and
» households with an annual income of up to £20,000.

The analyses would also have looked at the responses of organisations and groups
that provided a response. However, as the sample size for this segment was small
(four responses) this segment’s views have not been analysed as their own

grouping.

6
Page 19



Findings from the consultation

Summary of Key Findings

There was overall agreement with proposed changes to the HtST Policy, including
for:
» the distance from a child's home to their school to be calculated using the
nearest available entrance from the child’s home to the school grounds;
= the route to a school to be measured using the nearest available road route,
passable for a suitable motorised vehicle, when determining whether a non-
catchment school qualifies as a nearer school; and
= school transport to not be removed from children attending a non-catchment
school if a place at their catchment school, or a school closer to their home,
becomes available.

There was no overall agreement or disagreement on the proposed amendment to
the HtST Policy that would change the administration of appeal decisions. The most
common suggestion was that appeal decisions should be independent of the County
Council.

Suggestions of changes to the HtST Policy most frequently mentioned applying an
automatic entitlement to transport for children with SEND, and all cases being judged
on their unique merits.

There was overall disagreement with proposed changes to the P16T Policy, intended
to clarify that young people aged under 18 would not be automatically entitled to
transport if the following did not fit with public service transport times or college
times:

= parents’ and carers’ working hours;

» parents’ and carers’ child-care arrangements; or

» parents’ and carers’ need to get other children to and from school.

Almost half of respondents disagreed with the proposed change to the P16T
intended to clarify that a young person would not automatically be entitled to
transport if the family vehicle (including Mobility vehicle provided for the student)
needed to be used for purposes other than transporting the young person to post-16
education.

When asked to suggest other changes to the P16T Policy, respondents most
frequently mentioned that the Policy should consider the other responsibilities of
parents and carers when deciding if someone is eligible for transport, and that
children and young people with SEND should be automatically entitled to P16T.

The most frequently cited impacts of the proposals related to negative impacts on
parents and carers, particularly on their working patterns - and on children and
young people, most commonly that it changes could reduce access to education.

.
Page 20



Analysis of consultation responses

Proposed changes to the Home to School Transport Policy

There was majority agreement with three of the four proposals, with one proposal (to
amend the HtST Policy to reflect a change in the administration of how appeals are
processed) receiving a mixed response overall.

Proposed changes to the Home to School Transport Policy

To amend the Home to School Transport policy to clarify
that the distance froma child's home to their school is
calculated using the nearest available entrance from the
child’s home to the school grounds

To amend the Home to School Transport policy to clarify
that the route to a school is measured using the nearest
available road route, passable for a suitable motorised
vehicle, when determining whether a non-catchment
school qualifies as a nearer school

To amend the Home to School Transport policy to clarify
that school transport would not be removed from
children attending a non-catchment school if a place at
their catchment school, or a school closer to their home,
becomes available

To amend the Home to School Transport Policy to
reflect a change in the administration of how appeals are
processed

m Strongly disagree/Disagree
Neither agree nor disagree

m Agree/Strongly agree
Don't know Base size: 164 to 165 responses

8
Page 21



Using the nearest available entrance from the child’s home to the school
grounds for distance calculations

The County Council proposed to amend the Home to School Transport policy to
clarify that the distance from a child's home to their school is calculated using the
nearest available entrance from the child’s home to the school grounds

The majority of respondents agreed or strongly agreed with this proposal, with
double the number of respondents agreeing or strongly agreeing compared with
those who disagreed or strongly disagreed.

To amend the Home to School Transport policy to clarify that the distance
from a child's home to their school is calculated using the nearest
available entrance from the child’s home to the school grounds

Don't know, 2

Agree/Strongly

agree, 92 .
Neither agree nor

disagree, 24

Base: 163 responses

9
Page 22



Similarly, no one group opposed the proposal as a majority. However, respondents
from households that currently receive HtST or P16T were more mixed in their views
- with the same number agreeing as disagreeing. In addition, respondents from
households with incomes of up to £20,000 were as likely to have no overall view as
they were to agree with the proposal.

To amend the Home to School Transport policy to clarify that the distance
from a child's home to their school is calculated using the nearest
available entrance from the child’s home to the school grounds

All responses (Base: 163 responses) 45

Respondents from households with children (Base: 118

responses) 35

Respondents from households that currently receive
Home to School or Post-16 Transport provided by 24
Hampshire County Council (Base: 84 responses)

Respondents from households with children with Special 18 13
Educational Needs or Disabilities (Base: 68 responses)
Respondents from a household with an annual income 5 - 2
of up to £20,000 (Base: 16 responses)
Strongly disagree/Disagree Neither agree nor disagree
EAgree/Strongly agree Don't know

10
Page 23



Using the nearest available road route, passable for a suitable motorised
vehicle, for distance calculations

The County Council proposed to amend the Home to School Transport policy to
clarify that the route to a school is measured using the nearest available road route,
passable for a suitable motorised vehicle, when determining whether a non-
catchment school qualifies as a nearer school

Two thirds of respondents either agreed or strongly agreed with this proposal,
compared with just over one sixth of respondents who disagreed or strongly
disagreed.

To amend the Home to School Transport policy to clarify that the route to

a school is measured using the nearest available road route, passable for

a suitable motorised vehicle, when determining whether a non-catchment
school qualifies as a nearer school

Don't know, 3

Strongly
disagree/Disagree,

Neither agree nor
disagree, 22

Agree/Strongly
agree, 108

Base: 162 responses

11
Page 24



Three of the four groups potentially impacted by the proposal agreed with the
proposal. The lowest level of agreement was amongst respondents from households
that currently receive HtST or P16T provided by the County Council - half of whom
agreed or strongly agreed with the proposal and a quarter of whom strongly

disagreed or disagreed with the proposal.

All responses (Base: 162 responses) 29

Respondents from households with children (Base: 117

responses) 23

Respondents from households that currently receive
Home to School or Post-16 Transport provided by 16
Hampshire County Council (Base: 84 responses)

Respondents from households with children with Special

Educational Needs or Disabilities (Base: 67 responses) 14

Respondents from a household with an annual income
of up to £20,000 (Base: 16 responses)

Strongly disagree/Disagree

EAgree/Strongly agree

To amend the Home to School Transport policy to clarify that the route to

a school is measured using the nearest available road route, passable for

a suitable motorised vehicle, when determining whether a non-catchment
school qualifies as a nearer school

22
40

13

4 _

Neither agree nor disagree

32
10

Don't know

12
Page 25




To not remove school transport from children attending a non- catchment
school if a place at their catchment school, or a school closer to their home,
becomes available

The County Council proposed to amend the Home to School Transport policy to
clarify that school transport would not be removed from children attending a non-
catchment school if a place at their catchment school, or a school closer to their
home, becomes available

Two thirds of respondents either agreed or strongly agreed with this proposal,
compared with just under one sixth of respondents who disagreed or strongly
disagreed.

To amend the Home to School Transport policy to clarify that school
transport would not be removed from children attending a non-catchment
school if a place at their catchment school, or a school closer to their
home, becomes available

Strongly
disagree/Disagree,
25

Neither agree nor
disagree, 22

Agree/Strongly
agree, 116

Base: 163 responses

13
Page 26



When analysed by group, all agreed with the proposal overall.

Respondents from households with children with SEND showed the highest level of
agreement (around eight in 10 responses agreeing or strongly agreeing), whilst the
lowest level of agreement was amongst respondents from households that currently
receive HtST or P16T - of whom two thirds agreed or strongly agreed with the
proposal.

To amend the Home to School Transport policy to clarify that school
transport would not be removed from children attending a non-catchment
school if a place at their catchment school, or a school closer to their
home, becomes available

All responses (Base: 163 responses) 25 22

Respondents from households with children (Base: 118
responses)

Respondents from households that currently receive
Home to School or Post-16 Transport provided by
Hampshire County Council (Base: 684 responses)

Respondents from households with children with Special
Educational Needs or Disabilities (Base: 68 responses)

Respondents from a household with an annual income
of up to £20,000 (Base: 16 responses)

Strongly disagree/Disagree Neither agree nor disagree

B Agree/Strongly agree Don't know

14
Page 27



Changing the administration of how appeals are processed

The County Council proposed to amend the Home to School Transport Policy to
reflect a change in the administration of how appeals are processed

Respondents most frequently indicated that they neither agreed nor disagreed with
the proposal. Of those who specified a preference, more respondents agreed or
strongly agreed with this proposal than those who strongly disagreed or disagreed.

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to amend the
Home to School Transport Policy to reflect a change in the administration
of how appeals are processed?

Don't know, 3

Strongly
disagree/Disagree,
44

Agree/Strongly

agree, 57

Neither agree nor
disagree, 59

Base: 163 responses

15
Page 28



A breakdown of the different groups that could be impacted showed that they were
all more likely to disagree with the proposal than agree. However, none of these
groups showed a majority strongly disagreeing or disagreeing with the proposal, with
respondents generally more likely to neither agree nor disagree than oppose the
proposal.

The lowest level of agreement was amongst respondents from households that
currently receive HtST or P16T. Of these, one in five agreed or strongly agreed with
the proposal, compared with two in five who strongly disagreed or disagreed and two
in five who neither agreed nor disagreed.

To amend the Home to School Transport Policy to reflect a change in the
administration of how appeals are processed

All responses (Base: 163 responses) 44 59

Respondents from households with children (Base: 118

responses) 35 47

Respondents from households that currently receive
Home to School or Post-16 Transport provided by 25 25 3
Hampshire County Council (Base: 684 responses)

Respondents from households with children with Special

Educational Needs or Disabilities (Base: 68 responses) = — -

Respondents from a household with an annual income

of up to £20,000 (Base: 16 responses) - :
Strongly disagree/Disagree Neither agree nor disagree
B Agree/Strongly agree Don't know

In order to help the County Council to understand who respondents felt would be the most
appropriate person to make decisions on appeals regarding offers of transport,
respondents were asked ‘If you have any suggestions on who should make decisions on
appeals against offers of transport, please describe them below’.

37 respondents answered this question.

13 comments related specifically to individuals deciding on appeals regarding offers
of transport for children with SEND. Of these:

16
Page 29



6 mentioned that the individual deciding on appeals relating to SEND should
be independent of the team where the decision was made,

3 mentioned that the individual deciding on appeals relating to SEND should
be independent of the County Council,

3 mentioned that the individual deciding on appeals relating to SEND should
have a strong understanding of transport systems, networks, and safety,

1 mentioned that the individual should be a representative of the Special
Educational Needs Transport Advocacy Service (SENTAS)

1 mentioned that the individual should have a strong understanding of SEND
and mobility issues, and

1 mentioned that schools and parents should be involved in the appeals
process relating to SEND.

15 comments were provided about individuals deciding on appeals, without
reference to SEND. Of these:

11 mentioned that the Officer deciding on appeals should be independent of
the County Council,

3 mentioned that the School Transport Team should be involved in appeals
on offers for transport,

2 mentioned that a parent panel should make decisions on appeals,

2 mentioned that the job title of the individual involved should reflect their role
in the appeals process,

1 mentioned that the individual should be a senior County Council employee,
and

1 mentioned that the individual is not important, as long as appeals are heard
fairly.

In addition to comments on who would decide on appeals, 9 comments related to
other issues. These included:

3 mentioned concerns that the aim of changes was to save money or to reject
more appeals,

1 mentioned that all children with SEND should receive transport,

1 mentioned that all appeals should be heard on the individual merits of the
case,

1 mentioned difficulties finding the relevant information on this proposal in the
consultation Information Pack,

1 mentioned that responses to appeals should be presented in written form
and not presented verbally,

1 mentioned that it was unclear whether appeals would be heard by a single
person or by a team, and

1 mentioned that walking routes should be safe to use in all weather.

17
Page 30



Suggested changes to the Home to School Transport Policy

Respondents were asked ‘If you have any other suggestions for changes to the
Home to School Transport Policy then please describe these below’.

41 respondents provided an answer to this question.

Suggestions for policy changes, or changes to services, that were provided included

that:

all children with SEND should receive free transport (mentioned 8 times);
cases should be looked at on individual merits (mentioned 5 times);

the catchment areas of schools could be changed to make savings in
transport costs (mentioned once);

school escorts should be trained to deal with medical problems rather than
needing to call an ambulance (mentioned once);

there should be charges for parents who drive children to school (mentioned
once);

transport should be provided using the public transport network, to reduce
costs (mentioned once);

there should be greater consideration of a child’s mobility as well as their
travelling distance (mentioned once);

charges for parents should not be calculated using a tiered mechanism
(mentioned once);

travel routes should be organised to serve more than one school per route,
where possible (mentioned once); and

pick-up points should be organised to minimise the need for stops (mentioned
once).

12 respondents commented on the proposal to clarify that the route to a school is
measured using the nearest available road route, passable for a suitable motorised
vehicle, when determining whether a non-catchment school qualifies as a nearer
school. Of these:

9 mentioned concerns that ‘safe’ routes should be carefully identified, for
example with safe walking areas, appropriate road crossings, and well-lit
paths;

2 mentioned that a walking route distance may not recognise the complexity
of a route, particularly for children with SEND; and

1 mentioned that children with disabilities should not be expected to use a
walking route.

18
Page 31



9 respondents commented on the proposal to clarify that the distance from a child's
home to their school is calculated using the nearest available entrance from the
child’s home to the school grounds. Of these:

* 4 mentioned that the school’s main entrance should be used as the point of
measurement;

» 2 mentioned that there may be security risks if schools add entrances to their
premises;

» 1 mentioned that the ‘nearest entrance’ should only be used if it is accessible
by a disabled person;

» 1 mentioned a concern that this proposal would lead to new school entrances
being installed as a cost saving measure; and

» 1 mentioned that the start and end points in measurements should be ‘safe’
locations.

2 respondents commented on the proposal to clarify that school transport would not
be removed from children attending a non-catchment school if a place at their
catchment school, or a school closer to their home, becomes available. Of these, 1
mentioned that this change should also apply to P16T offers to prevent any
disruption of their education. The other 1 mentioned that the policy should be applied
differently for children with and without SEND, as children with SEND require
specialist provision that may not be met in mainstream education.

19
Page 32



Proposed changes to the Post-16 Transport Policy

There was majority disagreement with three of the four proposed amendments to the
P16T policy. Just under half of respondents (79 of 165) disagreed or strongly
disagreed with the proposal that having to use the family vehicle (including Mobility
vehicle provided for the student) for other purposes would not on its own entitle the
young person aged under 18 to transport.

To what extent do you agree or disagree that the following circumstances
would not on their own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling
the young person aged under 18 to transport?

Parents’ and carers’ work hours not fitting in with public
service transport times or college times would not on its
own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the

young person aged under 18 to transport

Parents’ and carers’ child-care arrangements not fitting
in with public service transport times or college times
would not on its own generally be considered as
exceptional, entitling the young personaged under 18 to
transport

Parents and carers needing to get other children to and
from school would not on its own generally be
considered as exceptional, entitling the young person
aged under 18 to transport

IS
()]

Having to use the family vehicle (including Mobility
vehicle provided for the student) for other purposes
would not on its own generally be considered as
exceptional, entitling the young person aged under 18 to
transport

34

m Strongly disagree/Disagree 0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
Neither agree nor disagree

B Agree/Strongly agree
Don't know Base: 164 to 165 responses

20
Page 33



Parents’ and carers’ work hours not fitting in with public service transport
times or college times

The County Council proposed to amend the Post-16 Transport Policy to state that
parents’ and carers’ work hours not fitting in with public service transport times or
college times would not on its own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling
the young person aged under 18 to transport

Overall, just over half of respondents disagreed or strongly disagreed with this
proposal, whilst just over one third of respondents agreed or strongly agreed.

Parents’ and carers’ work hours not fitting in with public service transport
times or college times would not on its own generally be considered as
exceptional, entitling the young person aged under 18 to transport

Don't know, 5

Agree/Strongly
agree, 58

Neither agree
nor disagree,
17

Base: 164 responses

21
Page 34



Groups that could be impacted by changes to the HtST and P16T policies, were also
more likely to disagree with the proposal than agree.

The groups most likely to disagree with the proposal were respondents from
households that currently receive HtST or P16T p, and those from households with
children with SEND.

Households with an income of up to £20,000 had a more mixed view of the proposal.
Just under half (7 of 16) disagreed or strongly disagreed, whilst a similar number (6
of 16) agreed or strongly agreed.

Parents’ and carers’ work hours not fitting in with public service transport
times or college times would not on its own generally be considered as
exceptional, entitling the young person aged under 18 to transport

All responses (Base: 164 responses)

1 |
——

Respondents from households with children (Base: 120
responses)

Respondents from households that currently receive
Home to School or Post-16 Transport provided by
Hampshire County Council (Base: 65 responses)

Respondents from households with children with Special
Educational Needs or Disabilities (Base: 89 responses)

Respondents from a household with an annual income
of up to £20,000 (Base: 16 responses)

m Strongly disagree/Disagree Neither agree nor disagree

B Agree/Strongly agree Don't know

22
Page 35



Parents’ and carers’ child-care arrangements not fitting in with public
service transport times or college times

The County Council proposed to amend the Post-16 Transport Policy to state that
parents’ and carers’ child-care arrangements not fitting in with public service
transport times or college times would not on its own generally be considered as
exceptional, entitling the young person aged under 18 to transport

Overall, over half of respondents disagreed or strongly disagreed with this proposal,
whilst one third of respondents agreed or strongly agreed.

Parents’ and carers’ child-care arrangements not fitting in with public
service transport times or college times would not on its own generally be
considered as exceptional, entitling the young person aged under 18 to
transport

Don't know, 5

Agree/Strongly
agree, 54

Neither agree nor
disagree, 19

Base: 164 responses

23
Page 36



When broken down by group, there was generally greater disagreement than
agreement.

The groups most likely to disagree with the proposal were respondents from
households that currently receive HtST or P16T, and those from households with

children with SEND, where around two thirds of respondents disagreed or strongly
disagreed with the proposal.

Half of respondents from households with an income of up to £20,000 disagreed or

strongly disagreed with the proposal, compared to around 5 of the 16 who agreed or
strongly agreed.

Parents’ and carers’ child-care arrangements not fitting in with public
service transport times or college times would not on its own generally be
considered as exceptional, entitling the young person aged under 18 to

transport
:
.

All responses (Base: 164 responses)

Respondents from households with children (Base: 120
responses)

Respondents from households that currently receive
Home to School or Post-16 Transport provided by
Hampshire County Council (Base: 65 responses)

Respondents from households with children with Special
Educational Needs or Disabilities (Base: 89 responses)

Respondents from a household with an annual income
of up to £20,000 (Base: 16 responses)

m Strongly disagree/Disagree Neither agree nor disagree

B Agree/Strongly agree Don't know

24
Page 37



Parents and carers of Post-16 students with SEND needing to get other
children to and from school

The County Council proposed to amend the Post-16 Transport Policy to state that
parents and carers needing to get other children to and from school would not on its
own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the young person aged under
18 to transport.

Overall, around six in ten respondents disagreed or strongly disagreed with this
proposal, whilst around three in ten respondents agreed or strongly agreed.

Parents and carers needing to get other children to and from school
would not on its own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the
young person aged under 18 to transport

Don't know, 4

Agree/Strongly
agree, 46

Neither agree nor
disagree, 17

Base: 164 responses

25
Page 38



When broken down by group, there was generally greater disagreement than
agreement.

The groups most likely to disagree with the proposal were respondents from
households with children with SEND, where seven in ten respondents disagreed or
strongly disagreed with the proposal.

Half of respondents from households with an income of up to £20,000 disagreed or
strongly disagreed with the proposal, a quarter agreed or strongly agreed, and a
guarter neither agreed nor disagreed.

Parents and carers needing to get other children to and from school
would not on its own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the

young person aged under 18 to transport
:
13
1

All responses (Base: 164 responses)

Respondents from households with children (Base: 120

responses) 3

Respondents from households that currently receive
Home to School or Post-16 Transport provided by
Hampshire County Council (Base: 65 responses)

6 2

m Strongly disagree/Disagree Neither agree nor disagree

Respondents from households with children with Special
Educational Needs or Disabilities (Base: 89 responses)

Respondents from a household with an annual income
of up to £20,000 (Base: 16 responses)

B Agree/Strongly agree Don't know

26
Page 39



Parents and carers of Post-16 students with SEND having to use the family
vehicle (including Mobility vehicle provided for the student) for other
purposes

The County Council proposed to amend the Post-16 Transport Policy to state that
having to use the family vehicle (including Mobility vehicle provided for the student)
for other purposes would not on its own generally be considered as exceptional,
entitling the young person aged under 18 to transport.

Overall, just under half of respondents disagreed or strongly disagreed with this
proposal, whilst just under three in ten respondents agreed or strongly agreed.

Having to use the family vehicle (including Mobility vehicle provided for
the student) for other purposes would not on its own generally be
considered as exceptional, entitling the young person aged under 18 to
transport

Don't know, 5

Agree/Strongly

agree, 47

Neither agree nor
disagree, 34

Base: 165 responses

27
Page 40



Different groups that could be impacted were generally more likely to disagree with
the proposal than agree.

The groups most likely to disagree with the proposal were respondents from
households with children with SEND, where six in ten respondents disagreed or
strongly disagreed with the proposal.

Households with an income of up to £20,000 were mixed in their views. Of the 16
responses from this group, 6 disagreed or strongly disagreed with the proposal, 4
neither agreed nor disagreed, and 6 agreed or strongly agreed.

Having to use the family vehicle (including Mobility vehicle provided for
the student) for other purposes would not on its own generally be
considered as exceptional, entitling the young person aged under 18 to
transport

All responses (Base: 165 responses) 79

Respondents from households with children (Base: 120

responses) 60

Respondents from households that currently receive
Home to School or Post-16 Transport provided by 34
Hampshire County Council (Base: 65 responses)

Respondents from households with children with Special

Educational Needs or Disabilities (Base: 89 responses) -z
Respondents from a household with an annual income 5 4
of up to £20,000 (Base: 16 responses)
Strongly disagree/Disagree Neither agree nor disagree
B Agree/Strongly agree Don't know

28
Page 41



Suggested changes to the Post-16 Transport Policy

Respondents were asked ‘If you have any other suggestions for changes to the
Post-16 Transport Policy then please describe these below’.

61 respondents provided an answer to this question.

19 comments described additional criteria that should be classed as ‘exceptional’
circumstances when deciding on eligibility for P16T. These included:

* 9 mentioned the working hours and commitments of parents and carers,

» 8 mentioned parents and carers having additional carer responsibilities,

» 3 mentioned situations where there is no suitable public transport available in
the area,

» 2 mentioned the distance travelled to Post-16 education, and

» 1 mentioned the journey time to Post-16 education.

12 respondents mentioned that all children and young people with SEND should
receive transport for Post-16 education.

11 respondents mentioned that, when applying for P16T, no circumstances should
exempt from being classed as ‘exceptional’ reasons necessitating the need for
transport.

5 respondents mentioned that P16T should only be offered to children and young
people who need to travel a distance that is too far for them to walk.

2 respondents mentioned that transport should not be removed from children or
young people already in Post-16 education.

2 respondents mentioned that family vehicles and mobility vehicles should be used
to transport children and young people to Post-16 education wherever possible.

2 respondents mentioned that the criteria used to decide on P16T applications
should focus on the mobility of the children and young people in question.

2 respondents mentioned that they did not feel that the County Council should tell
services users’ parents and carers that mobility vehicles should be used to transport
children and young people to Post-16 education.

2 respondents mentioned that criteria for eligibility should be based on individual
need.

1 respondent expressed surprise that income level was not used as a criteria for
assessing the need for P16T.

29
Page 42



1 respondent mentioned that disability should not be the sole measure of whether a
child or young person requires P16T.

1 respondent mentioned that the charge for P16T for families with more than one
child using the service is expensive.

1 respondent mentioned that services should look at how transport to education is
managed in other countries around the world, where these services are provided.

16 respondents commented on the potential impacts of the proposed changes to the
P16T policy. These included:

» 15 mentioned the ability for parents and carers to meet their working
commitments if the new policy clauses were introduced, and

» 5 mentioned that young people may struggle to access Post-16 education if
the new policy clauses were introduced.

12 respondents mentioned that the found the proposal on the change to the P16T
policy, or the question relating to it, confusing.

30
Page 43



Impacts of the proposed changes

Respondents were asked: ‘Please describe what, if any, impact the proposals in this
consultation could have on you or your family, or people you know or work with’.

81 respondents provided an answer to this question.

16 comments related directly to the proposed changes to the HtST Policy. The
themes of these responses are shown below:

* 7 mentioned the potential impacts on parents and carers, specifically:

o 4 mentioned that parents and carers may need to give up their work or
change their working hours,

o 1 mentioned that it may require driving their child to school,

o 1 mentioned that they may need to move home, and

o 1 mentioned that it may be difficult to get their child to school on time.

* 5 mentioned impacts on children, in particular:

o 3 mentioned that children may be unable to get to school,

o 2 mentioned of an increased risk to children’s safety if needing to walk
on unsafe routes, and

o 1 mentioned that children with SEND may not have the same
opportunities as those without SEND.

- 2 mentioned that a change to measuring distances could have an impact, with
1 mentioned that there could be an impact on parents being able to send their
child to Westgate school, and 1 mentioned that it is unreasonable to expect
children to walk up to 3 miles to school.

» 2 mentioned that there could be a negative environmental impact, as a result
of more people using cars to take their children to school.

» 2 mentioned negative financial impacts on families, as parents and carers
may be forced to give up work to take their children to school.

» 1 mentioned that the changes would have no significant impact, as the
respondent felt that parents or carers should be responsible for taking their
child to school.

37 comments related directly to the proposed changes to the P16T Policy. The
themes of these responses are shown below:

» 26 mentioned impacts on parents and carers, in particular:
o 15 mentioned that parents and carers may need to give up work in
order to take their child to their post-16 education,
o 9 mentioned that the changes may have a negative impact on parents’
and carers’ mental health,

31
Page 44



o 4 mentioned that parents and carers may need to change, or reduce,
their working hours in order to take their child to their post-16
education,

o 3 mentioned that parents and carers may need to travel more to get
their child to their post-16 education,

o 3 mentioned that parents and carers may find it difficult to get other
children to school on time,

o 1 mentioned that parents and carers may become unemployable if they
have to take on responsibility for taking their child to their post-16
education.

= 20 mentioned impacts on children and young people, specifically:

o 12 mentioned that it may prevent children and young people from
attending post-16 education,

o 7 mentioned that it may offer children and young people with SEND
fewer opportunities than available to those without SEND,

o 3 mentioned that it may restrict the choice of colleges for children and
young people with SEND, and

o 2 mentioned that it would create a barrier to education to children and
young people who are unable to take public transport independently.

« 11 mentioned financial impacts on families, where:

o 9 mentioned the financial impact of parents and carers giving up work,
and

o 2 mentioned the financial impact of additional childcare needed to
support families if the proposed changes to the P16T Policy are
implemented.

» 2 mentioned that there would be no impact, or a minimal impact, to them as a
result of the proposed changes to the P16T Policy.

= 3 mentioned risks to the safety of children and young people, as they were
concerned that walking routes pose a risk to children and young people.

= 2 mentioned that the changes would penalise children and young people who
live a significant distance from their place of post-16 education.

» 1 mentioned a negative environmental impact as a result of increased
congestion if parents and carers were required to take their children to post-
16 education.

29 comments did not specify whether they related to HtST or P16T. Of these:

« 11 mentioned potential impacts on parents and carers, including:
o 5 mentioned that parents and carers may need to give up their jobs,
o 3 mentioned potential impacts on parents’ and carers’ mental
wellbeing,
o 2 mentioned that parents and carers may need to reduce their working
hours,

32
Page 45



o 2 mentioned that parents and carers may struggle to get all of their
children to school on time, and

o 1 mentioned that the changes may result in a loss of childcare
arrangements if their childminder could not accommodate the changes.
8 mentioned potential impacts on children and young people, specifically:
o 5 mentioned that it would make it harder for children and young people
to attend education,
o 2 mentioned that it would mean that children and young people with
SEND would have fewer opportunities than those without SEND,
o 1 mentioned that children and young people could suffer from a loss of
continuity in their education, and
o 1 mentioned that it would impact children and young people who are
unable to use public transport independently.
4 mentioned that there would be no impact, or minimal impact, as a result of
these changes.
4 mentioned a negative environmental impact, as a result of increased
congestion and car usage.
3 mentioned a financial impact, where:

o 2 mentioned that families would be under increased financial pressure
if parents or carers needed to give up work, and

o 1 mentioned that families with children or young people with SEND are
already financially disadvantaged.

3 mentioned risks to children and young people’s safety, of which:

o 2 mentioned that it would be dangerous for children and young people
to walk beside roads, and

o 1 mentioned that they would need to take their child to and from school
to ensure they were travelling safely.

33
Page 46



Further comments and suggestions

Respondents were asked: ‘If you have any further comments on the proposals in this
consultation, or alternative suggestions on how the County Council could make savings
from its Children's Services budget, then please provide these in the box below’. 56
respondents provided an answer to this question.

12 comments mentioned that there should be no savings made to the services in
question or the Children’s Services Department.

10 comments mentioned impacts of the proposed changes to the P16T Policy,
where:

* 4 mentioned that the changes could result in less independence for children
and young people with SEND,

* 4 mentioned that there could be financial impacts as a result of giving up
work or changing working patterns,

« 3 mentioned that it may be harder to get other children to school on time, and

» 2 mentioned that there could be environmental impacts if parents and carers
need to use their own cars to get their child to post-16 education.

8 comments gave suggestions on how to deliver HtST and P16T services more
efficiently, including:

+ 3 mentioned a greater use of shared journeys to reduce costs,

« 2 mentioned renegotiating contracts with suppliers to reduce costs,

» 1 mentioned that paperwork and the EHCP process could be reduced,

» 1 mentioned that mainstream schools should take more children with SEND
so that they would not need to travel so far,

» 1 mentioned making greater use of public transport, and

» 1 mentioned that the County Council should learn how these services are
provided in other countries to see if a more efficient way is possible.

7 comments suggested additional considerations that should be made when
deciding whether a child or young person is eligible for P16T, such as:

» 2 mentioned that parents’ and carers’ working commitments should be
considered,

» 2 mentioned that consideration should be given to ensure that a child or
young person has access to an education in the most appropriate setting for
their needs,

« 1 mentioned that family commitments (such as childcare and taking other
children to education) should be considered,

+ 1 mentioned that use to accessible public transport should be considered, and

» 1 mentioned that decisions should be based on the child or young person’s
individual needs, reviewed annually.

34
Page 47



4 comments mentioned that P16T provision for children and young people with
SEND should be increased.

4 comments mentioned that charges could be introduced or increased, with 2
suggestions that charges be made for transport provided and 2 suggestions that
parents and carers who use their cars to take children to school should be charged.

3 comments mentioned that savings should be made within the County Council, with
two comments specifying that the staff pay budget should be targeted for
efficiencies.

3 comments mentioned that child safety may be put at risk by the proposed changes.

2 comments mentioned that there should be income generation to reduce the need
for service efficiencies, with specific suggestions that local businesses be asked to

sponsor transport schemes (mentioned once), and that minibuses be used for other
purposes as well as school transport (mentioned once).

2 comments mentioned the use of mobility vehicles, where:

» 1 mentioned that parents with mobility vehicles should be expected to take
their child or young person to school or post-16 education, and

» 1 mentioned that the County Council should not tell mobility vehicle users that
they should take their child or young person to school or post-16 education.

Each of the following comments was mentioned 1 time:

» Reducing the number of school buses could increase the number of cars on
the road, affecting congestion and pollutions levels.

» Children with SEND should automatically be entitled to receive HtST.

= Children placed in schools outside Hampshire by the Local Authority should
automatically be entitled to receive HtST.

= Children should not be charged if they travel to school or college by bus.

» The County Council should lobby Central Government for more funding.

» The savings would not generate savings, as costs would increase elsewhere.

» ltis not fair for parents and carers to be asked to suggest ways that the
County Council can make savings to its budget.

» There should be more engagement with the public to look for innovative ways
for savings to be made.

= Savings could be made by reducing the use of direct payments.

« The walking route proposed for a specific school, Robert Mays, is not
considered by the respondent to be a safe walking route.

» The respondent felt that what was being proposed in the consultation was
unclear.

35
Page 48



Responses from organisations and groups using the Response Form

There were four responses from organisations and groups using the Response
Form. These responses are part of the collective analysis of responses in this report,
and the free text responses provided by this group are also summarised below.

Regarding changes to the HtST Policy, these respondents mentioned that distance
calculations should reflect more than simply the journey length, also considering
rurality, local public transport facilities, and the complexity of journeys from the
perspective of children with SEND.

When commenting on who should decide on appeals relating to offers of transport,
the respondents mentioned the need for impartiality, transparency in the reasons for
their decisions, and having a good understanding of both the needs of children with
SEND and the legal framework in which the HtST Service operates. They also
mentioned the need for decisions to be made without undue delay.

Respondents made suggestions for changes to the P16T Policy, where they
mentioned that:

= there should be a understanding in the Policy of the needs of students with
SEND;

= transport should be offered as a long-term commitment to the student, not as
short-term provision; and

» the Policy should not contradict the County Council’s statutory duty to provide
transport for Post-16 students.

Respondents highlighted potential impacts on families where charges are applied,
and risks to the independence of children and young people if they have less access
to education as a result of the proposed changes. In addition, there was mention of
risks to the safety of children and young people walking to school beside roads
which may not have adequate footpaths or lighting, and the impact of increased
congestion and pollution if more parents drive their children to school or college. The
risks to students’ mental health was also mentioned, if they were no longer to receive
the support or supervision they require to travel to education.

When asked to provide further comments, organisations and groups mentioned the
need to encourage independence and ensure equal access to education for all
students. It was felt this was particularly important for families with children and
young people with SEND as they can face greater challenges around transport
compared to other families.

36
Page 49



Comments also highlighted the waiting time during journeys and the additional
support, and associated costs, needed to assist children and young people when
waiting for transport, as well as when using it.

It was also commented that the County Council should be mindful of legislative
requirements when planning savings to the Children’s Services budget, and ensure
that services for children with SEND have the funding they need when allocating
resources.

37
Page 50



Unstructured responses

The consultation received three ‘unstructured’ responses, all of which were
submitted via email. These are responses that were made within the consultation
period but were not submitted using the consultation questionnaire. One of these
was submitted by an individual, and two were submitted by organisations.

The unstructured responses made the following comments:

That the proposed changes to the P16T Policy were hard to understand in the
Easy Read document.

That the policies should be written in simple English to ensure that parents,
carers and service users can understand them.

That families in rural areas and on low incomes could be impacted by the
proposed changes to the P16T Policy in addition to the impacts of reduced
public transport services in rural areas and the introduction of Universal
Credit.

Families with children at different schools may find it hard to take their
children to school if they no longer received HtST or P16T.

In the event that transport was not offered and a child or young person was
unable to access education, there would be impacts on other services and on
the child or young person and their family.

There was a concern that absenteeism could rise, and that parents or carers
could be fined for their child or young person’s non-attendance in education in
this scenario.

That it is important for all cases to be assessed on their individual merits.
That impact assessments should be produced to understand the effects of the
proposed changes at a local level.

38
Page 51



Appendices

Appendix one — Research approach

The County Council carried out an open consultation designed to give all Hampshire
residents and wider stakeholders the opportunity to have their say about proposed
changes to the Home to School Transport Policy and Post-16 Transport Policy.

The general public living outside Hampshire were also able to respond. In total there
were 168 responses to the consultation, all of which were submitted online. The
consultation ran between 13 January 2020 and 23 February 2020.

Responses could be submitted through an online Response Form, available

at www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/haveyoursay/consultations/schooltransport or
as a paper form, which was made available on request. An Easy Read version was
also produced. Alternative formats were also made available on

request. Unstructured responses sent through other means, such as via email or as
written letters, and received by the consultation’s closing date were also accepted. A
summary of these findings is included as part of the consultation findings.

An Information Pack was produced alongside the consultation, providing information
about each of the options presented. The Information Pack was also available in
Easy Read format.

In addition to being made available via the consultation web page
(www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/haveyoursay/consultations), the consultation
was communicated via:

» amediarelease, forwarded to the media, Hampshire MPs, and all Hampshire
County Councillors;

= an article published on hants.gov.uk
(www.hants.gov.uk/News/Jan15HtSTConsultation2020);

» the County Council’s newsletter to town and parish councils, which was
distributed in January;

» social media posts on Twitter, Facebook and LinkedIn; and

» internal online channels at the County Council, and using digital screens in
County Council premises, to inform the County Council’s staff of this
consultation.

39
Page 52


http://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/haveyoursay/consultations/schooltransport
http://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/haveyoursay/consultations
http://www.hants.gov.uk/News/Jan15HtSTConsultation2020

Appendix two — Interpreting the data

The analysis only takes into account actual responses — where ‘no response’ was
provided to a question, this was not included in the analysis. As such, the totals for
each question may add up to less than 165 (the total number of respondents who
replied to the consultation questionnaire). As the consultation was an open exercise,
its findings cannot be considered to be a ‘sample’ or representative of the Hampshire
population. All consultation questions were optional.

Of the 165 responses received to the consultation questionnaire, seven responded
using the Easy Read Response Form and 158 responded using the non-Easy Read
Response Form.

In addition, three responses were received during the consultation via email.

Open-ended responses were analysed by theme, using an inductive approach. This
means that the themes were developed from the responses themselves, not pre-
determined based on expectations, to avoid any bias in the analysis of these
responses. These themes, brought together into code frames, were reviewed by
the researchers throughout their analysis of the findings to ensure that they were
accurate and comprehensive. The report refers to all codes that were produced
through this analysis.

Publication of data

All data is processed according to the General Data Protection Regulations as
detailed below:

Hampshire County Council adheres to the requirements of the UK Data Protection
legislation. Hampshire County Council is registered on the public register of data
controllers which is looked after by the Information Commissioner. The information
that was provided through the questionnaire will only be used to understand views
on the proposals set out for this consultation. All individuals’ responses will be kept
confidential and will not be shared with third parties, but responses from
organisations may be published in full. Responses will be stored securely and
retained for one year following the end of the consultation before being deleted or
destroyed.

Where the information provided is personal information, there are certain legal rights.
Respondents to the consultation may ask us for the information we hold about you,
to rectify inaccurate information the County Council holds about you, to restrict our
use of your personal information and to erase your personal data. When the County
Council uses your personal information on the basis of your consent, you will also
have the right to withdraw your consent to our use of your personal information at
any time.

40
Page 53



Appendix three - Consultation Response Form

Consultation on proposed changes to the By H am p Sh 1 Iée
Home to School Transport Policy and @ County Council

Post-16 Transport Policy

Introduction

Hampshire County Council is seeking residents’ and stakeholders’ views on proposals to change
its Home to School and Post-16 Transport policies.

Service users with existing transport arrangements would continue to receive the service that has
been offered, unless there were to be a change in the circumstances of the service user (such as
a change in school, moving home, or the transport meeting the end date that was set when the
transport was offered). Any changes in policies would only affect new applications for transport
following a change in policy.

The consultation opens on Monday 13 January 2020 and closes at midnight on Sunday 23
February 2020. Any responses received after the closing date will not be included in the findings
report that will be presented to the Executive Member for Education and Skills later in 2020, along
with a final recommendation on changes to the Home to School Transport Policy and Post-16
Transport Policy.

More information on these proposals and the consultation can be found on the web page at
www.hants.gov.uk/school-transport-consultation. It is strongly advised that you read the
information pack, which can be found on this web page, before completing this consultation.

If you have any questions about this consultation, please contact Hampshire County Council via
email at school transport@hants.gov.uk, or by telephone on 0300 555 1384.

When you have finished providing your response with this form, please return it to the County
Council in the pre-paid envelope that you may have been provided.

If you do not have a pre-paid envelope, please post your response to: Freepost HAMPSHIRE

Please also write School Transport Consultation on the back of the envelope. You do not need
to use a stamp.

You can request this consultation document in other formats, such as easy read, Braille, audio or
large print, by emailing school.transport@hants.gov.uk, or by calling 0300 555 1384.

www. hants.gov. uk/school-transport-consultation Page 1

41
Page 54



Consultation on proposed changes to the By Ham p Sh ire
Home to School Transport Policy and @ Co unty Council

Post-16 Transport Policy

Privacy notice

Hampshire County Council is collecting information about you through this questionnaire in order
to understand views on the proposals to change the Home to School Transport Policy and Post-16
Transport Policy. We will use the information to understand your views and the perceived impact
of the proposed changes. All data will remain within the UK, and will not be shared with third
parties. We will keep your personal information securely for one year, after which it will be deleted
or destroyed.

You have some legal rights in respect of the personal information we collect from you. Please see
our website Data Protection page at
www_hants_gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/strategiesplansandpolicies/dataprotection for further details.
You can contact the County Council’s Data Protection Officer at data.protection@hants.gov.uk. If
you have a concern about the way we are collecting or using your personal data, you should raise
your concem with us in the first instance or directly to the Information Commissioner’s Office at
https://ico.org.uk/concerns.

About this consultation

This questionnaire is divided into four sections:
Section 1: Proposed changes to the Home to School Transport Policy
Section 2: Proposed change to the Post-16 Transport Policy
Section 3: Further comments

Section 4: About You

The consultation results and analysis of the findings will be published and presented to the
Executive Member for Education and Skills later in 2020, along with a final recommendation on
changes to the Home to School Transport Policy and Post-16 Transport Policy.

www._hants_gov. uk/school-transport-consultation Page 2

42
Page 55




Consultation on proposed changes to the Ham Sh 1rée
Home to School Transport Policy and @ County Council

Post-16 Transport Policy

Section 1: Proposed changes to the Home to School Transport Policy

The County Council is proposing changes to the Home to School Transport Palicy, to provide
greater clarity on how eligibility for transport is assessed and to bring the policy in line with
expected changes in legislation.

These proposed changes are explained on pages 8 to 13 of the consultation Information Pack,
which can be found at www.hants.gov.uk/school-transport-consultation.

Question 1: Please indicate how strongly you agree or disagree with the following
proposed changes to the School Transport Policy:
Please select one option for each proposal

Neither
Strongly agree nor Strongly Don't
disagree Disagree disagree  Agree agree know

To amend the Home to School Transport

policy to clarify that the distance from a

child's home to their school is calculated |:| D [] |:] |:| |:|
using the nearest available entrance from

the child’s home to the school grounds

To amend the Home to School Transport

policy to clarify that the route to a school

is measured using the nearest available

road route, passable for a suitable

motorised vehicle, when determining |:| D |:| D |:| D
whether a non-catchment school qualifies

as a nearer school (if all of the routes to

the schools in question are beyond

statutory walking distances)

To amend the Home to School Transport

policy to clarify that school transport

would not be removed from children

attending a non-catchment school if a |:| D D D D D
place at their catchment school, or a

school closer to their home, becomes

avallable

Question 2: If you have any other suggestions for changes to the Home to School
Transport Policy then please describe these below:

www.hants.gov.uk/school-transport-consultation Page 3

43
Page 56




Consultation on proposed changes to the Ham Sh 1re
Home to School Transport Policy and @ County Council

Post-16 Transport Policy

Section 1: Proposed changes to the Home to School Transport Policy

The County Council is proposing that a senior officer outside of the School Transport Team, for
example a Principal Admissions Officer, would make decisions on appeals against offers of
transport.

This proposed change is explained on page 14 of the consultation Information Pack, which can be
found at www.hants.gov.uk/school-transport-consultation.

Question 3: To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to amend the Home
to School Transport Policy to reflect a change in the administration of how appeals are

processed?
Please select one option
Strongly Neither agree Strongly
disagree Disagree nor disagree Agree agree Don't know

LI [] [] [] [] []

Question 4: If you have any suggestions on who should make decisions on appeals against
offers of transport, please describe them below:

www._hants.gov.uk/school-transport-consultation Page 4

44
Page 57




Consultation on proposed changes to the Ham Sh 1re
Home to School Transport Policy and @ County Council

Post-16 Transport Policy

Section 2: Proposed change to the Post-16 Transport Policy

The County Council is proposing to add new clauses to the Post-16 Transport Policy, clarifying the
responsibilities of parents and carers to for arrange transport for their children to their place of
Post-16 education or training up until they become an adult at 18.

These proposed new clauses would set out what the County Council would consider when making
decisions about whether to provide transport.

This proposed change is explained on pages 15 to 16 of the consultation Information Pack, which
can be found at www.hants.gov.uk/school-transport-consultation.

Question 5: To what extent do you agree or disagree that the following circumstances
would not on their own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the young person
aged under 18 to transport?

Please select one option

Neither
Strongly agree nor Strongly Don't
disagree Disagree disagree  Agree agree know

Parents’ and carers’ work hours not fitting

in with public service transport times or [___| [:| |:| D |:] D

college times
Parents’ and carers’ child-care

arrangements not fitting in with public D |:| |:| [:] D |:|

service transport times or college times

Parents and carers needing to get other

children to and from school D D D D D D
Having to use the family vehicle

(including Mobility vehicle provided for [:| |:| |:| [:' D |:|

the student) for other purposes

Question 6: If you have any other suggestions for changes to the Post-16 Transport Policy
then please describe these below:

www._hants.gov. uk/school-transport-consultation Page 5

45
Page 58




Consultation on proposed changes to the By H am Sh 1 re
Home to School Transport Policy and @ County Council

Post-16 Transport Policy

Section 3: Further comments

Question 7: If you have any further comments on the proposals in this consultation, or
alternative suggestions on how the County Council could make savings from its Children's
Services budget, then please provide these in the box below.

Please do not include any personal details in your response

Question 8: Please describe what, if any, impact the proposals in this consultation could
have on you or your family, or people you know or work with.
Please do not include any personal details in your response

www. hants.gov.uk/school-transport-consultation Page 6

46
Page 59




Consultation on proposed changes to the Py Ham p Sh ire
Home to School Transport Policy and @ C ounty Council

Post-16 Transport Policy

Section 4: About you

Hampshire County Council is committed to improving its services, eliminating unlawful
discrimination, and promoting equality of opportunity for all people.

We would be grateful if you could answer the following questions so that we can analyse the
results overall and by different groups of people. This will help us to understand the impacts of the
consultation proposals and the views on them by different groups.

Is this a personal response, or are you responding on behalf of an organisation or group
that you represent?
Please select one option

TS 1S 8 POrSONal T S P OISO o o s o d e S L S S B S A 3 S LS S it |:|
This response is on behalf of an organisation or group that lrepresent. ... |:|

If this is a personal response, please now go to the next page and ignore the remainder of the
questions on this page.

If this response is on behalf of an organisation or group that you represent, please answer
the questions below.

Please tell us a little bit about the organisation or group that you represent
The name of the organisation or group

The address of the organisation or group

Your name | |

Your position in the organisation or group | |

If this response is on behalf of an organisation or group that you represent, please go to last
page of this response form.

www._hants._gov.uk/school-transport-consultation Page 7

47
Page 60




Consultation on proposed changes to the Py Hamp Sh ire
Home to School Transport Policy and @ County Council

Post-16 Transport Policy

How old are you?
Please sect one option

Under18... ... [] 35t044 [] 65t074 []
151 [] 5L [] 75 0r OVer ............... []
25t034. .. |:| 55to64. ... |:| Prefer not to say ... |:|

How would you describe your gender?
Please select one option

Female Male Other Prefer not to say

[] [] [] []

For 'other’, please describe in the box below:

Are there any children or young people up to the age of 18 living in your household
(including yourself)?
Please select one option

Yes No Prefer not to say

[ ] []

Do any of the children or young people in your household currently receive Home to
School or Post-16 Transport provided by Hampshire County Council?
Please select one option

Yes No Don't know Prefer not to say

] [] [ [

Do any of the children or young people in your household have either of the following?
Please select all that apply

Special Educational
Needs Physical disabilities Neither of these Prefer not to say

L] L] [] []

What is your total annual household income, from all sources, before tax and other
deductions?

Upto £10000 . [ ] £70.001 to £80.000. ... []
£10,001 to £20,000.. .. [] £80,001 to £90,000. .. []
£20,001 to £30,000.... .. . [] £00,001 to £100,000.. . []
£30,001 to £40,000.... ..o [] £100,001 OF OVET ooooooooooooeeeee . []
£40,001 to £50,000. [] Don't Know []
£50,001 to £60,000.. ... [] Prefernottosay ... []
£60,001 t0 £70,000.... ...~ ooooooooooo. []

www. hants.gov. uk/schooHlansport-oonsuIlalion Page 8

48
Page 61




Consultation on proposed changes to the By Hamp Sh 1 re
Home to School Transport Policy and @ County Council

Post-16 Transport Policy

Section 4: About you

Finally, to help us improve access to future consultations, please tell us where you first
heard about this consultation:
Please sect one option

] 4 |:|

Consultation letter. . |:|
On social media (e.g. Facebook, Twitter, etc) ... D
WOrd i OF OURN s s s S S a  B  B P SS B v |:|
Reported in the press (e.g. radio, NEWSPAPET) .. D

For 'other’, please describe in the box below:

End of questionnaire

Thank you for taking the time to complete this questionnaire.

This consultation closes at midnight on Sunday 23 February 2020. The consultation results and
analysis of the findings will be published and presented to the Executive Member for Education
and Skills later in 2020, along with a final recommendation on changes to the Home to School
Transport Policy and Post-16 Transport Policy.

If you have any questions about this consultation, please contact Hampshire County Council via
email at school transport@hants.gov.uk, or by telephone on 0300 555 1384.

When you have finished providing your response with this form, please retum it to the County
Council in the pre-paid envelope that you may have been provided.

If you do not have a pre-paid envelope, please post your response to: Freepost HAMPSHIRE

Please also write Transport Consultation on the back of the envelope. You do not need to use a
stamp.

You can request this consultation document in other formats, such as easy read, Braille, audio or
large print, by emailing school.transport@hants.gov.uk, or by calling 0300 555 1384.

www._hants._gov.uk/school-transport-consultation Page 9

49
Page 62




Appendix four — List of organisations or groups who responded to the
consultation

The consultation questionnaire asked whether the respondent was responding on
behalf of an organisation or group. There was a total of four responses to the
consultation questionnaire on behalf of an organisation, group or community
representative body, and two responses on behalf of an organisation as unstructured
responses, via email.

Organisation or groups who responded to the consultation, that provided details, are
listed below:

= Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council
» Eastleigh College

» Icknield School

* Queen Mary’s College, Basingstoke

= Selborne Parish Council

50
Page 63



Appendix five — Consultation participant profile

The breakdown of the 168 consultation respondents by category is shown below:

e Respondent type:
o Individual: 161
o Organisation or Group: 6
o No response given to this question: 1

The breakdown of the 161 individuals who responded to the consultation is shown
below:

e Age:

Under 18:0
18t0 24: 4
25t034: 9
35 to 44:37
45 to 54:62
55 to 64: 29

65t0 74: 1
75 or over: 1
Prefer not to say/ No response given to this question: 6

0O OO0 O o0 0O O O O

e Gender:

o Female: 104

o Male: 38

o Other: 0

o Prefer not to say/No response given to this question: 19

« Did the respondent have any children or young people up to the age of 18
living in their household at the time of responding to the consultation
(including themselves)?

o Yes:120
No: 30

(©)
o Unsure: 1
o Prefer not to say/No response given to this question: 10

51
Page 64



Of the 120 respondents with a child or young person up to the age of 18 living
in their household at the time of responding to the consultation: Did any of
children or young people in the respondent’s household receive Home to
School or Post-16 Transport provided by Hampshire County Council at the
time of responding to the consultation?

o Yes: 65

o No: 44

o Unsure: 1

o Prefer not to say/No response given to this question: 10

Of the 120 respondents with a child or young person up to the age of 18 living
in their household at the time of responding to the consultation: Did any of the
children or young people in the respondent’s household have either of the
following at the time of responding to the consultation: (multi choice)

o Special Educational Needs: 65

o Physical disabilities: 23

o Neither of these: 43

o Prefer not to say/No response given to this question: 8

Total annual household income, from all sources, before tax and other
deductions:

 Upto £10,000: 4

e £10,001 to £20,000: 12

e £20,001 to £30,000: 17

- £30,001 to £40,000: 8

e £40,001 to £50,000: 8

e £50,001 to £60,000: 11

* £60,001 to £70,000: 8

- £70,001 to £80,000: 8

- £80,001 to £90,000: 3

e £90,001 to £100,000:4

« £100,001 or over: 6

e Don't know: 5

e Prefer not to say/No response given to this question: 54

52
Page 65



Appendix six — Data Tables

Please note that the data tables for the Easy Read and non-Easy Read Response
Forms are presented separately, as different answer options were provided for the
two formats to improve accessibility for Easy Read users.

Where sample sizes are below 10, these figures are suppressed in the results. This
is to preserve anonymity, and because of the risks of interpreting small sample sizes
as representative. Where figures are suppressed, these are shown as an asterisk (*)
in the data tables.

Non-Easy Read response form data tables

Question 1: Please indicate how strongly you agree or disagree with the following
proposed changes to the School Transport Policy: To amend the Home to School
Transport policy to clarify that the distance from a child's home to their school is
calculated wsing the nearest available entrance from the child's home to the school
grounds
Strongly Neither agree Strongly
Base dizagree Dizagree nor disagree Agree agree Don't know
Total 155 22 17 22 54 38 2
Is this a personal response, or
are you responding on behalf of
an organisation or group that you
represent?
This is a personal response 151 22 17 22 51 kT 2
This response is on behalf of an
organisation or group that | 4
represent
How old are you?
Under 138
18 to 24 4
2510 34 9
35to 44 36 7 3 3 13 2 2
45to 54 61 2 2 " 19 15 -
55to 64 29 4 4 5 10 6 -
G5 to 74 1
75 or over 1
Prefer not to say [
How would you describe your
gender?
Female 97 13 13 12 35 21 2
Male 38 7 3 2 8 12 -
Other
Prefer not to say 11 2 1 2 4 2 -

53
Page 66



Question 1: Please indicate how strongly you agree or disagree with the following
proposed changes to the School Transport Policy: To amend the Home to School
Transport policy to clarify that the distance from a child's home to their school is
calculated using the nearest available entrance from the child's home to the school

grounds
Strongly Neither agree Strongly
Base dizagree Dizagree nor disagree Agree agree Don't know
Total 143 22 17 22 49 36 2
Are there any children or young
people up to the age of 18 living
in your household (including
yourself)?
Yes 111 19 11 17 38 24 2
No 30 - 5 5 9 11 -
Prefer not to say [ = * * * * *
Do any of the children or young
people in your household
currently receive Home to School
or Post-16 Transport provided by
Hampshire County Council?
Yes 60 15 7 12 19 5 2
No L 3 3 5 16 17 -
Don't know 1 * * * * * *
Prefer not to say 3 = * * * * *
Do any of the children or young
people in your household have
either of the following?
Special Educational Heeds 60 ] 5 11 23 11 2
Physical disabilities 21 4 3 3 11 - -
Heither of these 42 9 5 5 11 12 -
Prefer not to say 5 = * * * * *
VWhat is your total annual
household income, from all
sources, before tax and other
deductions?

Up to £10,000 4 * * * * * *
£10,001 to £20,000 12 1 - 5 3 3 -
£20,001 to £30,000 17 1 2 2 10 2 -
£30,001 to £40,000 7 * * * * * *
£40,001 to £50,000 3 * * * * * *
£50,001 to £60,000 11 - - - 5 6 -
£60,001 to £70,000 3 * * * * * *
£70,001 to £80,000 7 = * * * * *
£20,001 to £90,000 3 = * * * * *

£90,001 to £100,000 4 * * * * * *
£100,001 or over 1] = * * * * *
Don't know 5 = * * * * *

Prefer not to say 53 ih! 11 5 158 £} 2

54
Page 67




Question 1: Please indicate how strongly you agree or disagree with the following
proposed changes to the School Transport Policy: To amend the Home to School
Transport policy to clarify that the route to a school is measured using the nearest
available road route, passable for a suitable motorised vehicle, when determining

whether a non-catchment school qualifies as a nearer school

Strongly Neither agree Strongly
Base dizagree Dizagree nor disagree Agree agree Don't know
Total 154 13 14 20 70 34 3
Is this a personal response, or
are you responding on behalf of
an organisation or group that you
represent?
This is a personal response 150 13 13 20 [ 33 3
This response is on behalf of an
organisation or group that | 4 = * * * * *
represent
Howv old are you?
Under 18 - * * * * * *
18 to 24 4 = * * * * *
25 to 34 3 & * * * * *
35t0 44 36 3 4 3 17 3 3
45to 54 61 4 4 12 26 15 -
55to 64 29 4 5 2 12 3 -
65 to 74 1 * * * * * *
75 or over 1 * * * * * *
Prefer not to say [ = * * * * *
How would you describe your
gender?
Female a7 9 2 13 45 19 2
Male 38 3 5 4 15 10 1
Other _ = * * * - *
Prefer not to say 11 1 - 3 5 2 -

55
Page 68




Question 1: Please indicate how strongly you agree or disagree with the following
proposed changes to the School Transport Policy: To amend the Home to School
Transport policy to clarify that the route to a school is measured using the nearest
available road route, passable for a suitable motorised vehicle, when determining

whether a non-catchment school qualifies as a nearer school

Strongly Neither agree Strongly
Base dizagree Dizagree nor disagree Agree agree Don't know
Total 147 13 13 20 66 32 3
Are there any children or young
people up to the age of 18 living
in your household (including
yourself)?
Yes 110 11 10 16 50 20 3
No 30 - 3 2 14 11 -
Prefer not to say [ = * * * * *
Do any of the children or young
people in your household
currently receive Home to School
or Post-16 Transport provided by
Hampshire County Council?
Yes 60 9 7 12 23 6 3
No 43 2 2 3 23 13 -
Don't know 1 * * * * * *
Prefer not to say 3 = * * * * *
Do any of the children or young
people in your household have
either of the following?
Special Educational Heeds 59 5 T 9 24 11 3
Physical disabilities 21 1 4 6 9 1 -
Heither of these 42 3 z [} z T -
Prefer not to say 5 = * * * * *
VWhat is your total annual
household income, from all
sources, before tax and other
deductions?

Up to £10,000 4 * * * * * *
£10,001 to £20,000 12 1 1 2 6 2 -
£20,001 to £30,000 17 2 1 3 8 3 -
£30,001 to £40,000 7 * * * * * *
£40,001 to £50,000 3 * * * * * *
£50,001 to £60,000 11 - 2 - 4 5 -
£60,001 to £70,000 3 * * * * * *
£70,001 to £80,000 7 = * * * * *
£20,001 to £90,000 3 = * * * * *

£90,001 to £100,000 4 * * * * * *
£100,001 or over 1] = * * * * *
Don't know 5 = * * * * *

Prefer not to say 52 5 [ 10 20 a2 3

56
Page 69




Question 1: Please indicate how strongly you agree or disagree with the following
proposed changes to the School Transport Policy: To amend the Home to School
Transport policy to clarify that school transport would not be removed from children
attending a non-catchment school if a place at their catchment school, or a school closer
to their home, becomes available

Strongly Neither agree Strongly
Base dizagree Dizagree nor disagree Agree agree Don't know
Total 155 15 10 20 55 55 -
Is this a personal response, or
are you responding on behalf of
an organisation or group that you
represent?
This is a personal response 151 15 10 20 53 53 -
This response is on behalf of an
organisation or group that | 4 = * * * * *
represent
How old are you?
Under 18 - * * * * * *
18 to 24 4 = * * * * *
25 to 34 9 & * * * * *
35t0 44 36 5 5 3 14 9 -
45to 54 61 4 3 10 21 23 -
55to 64 29 3 2 4 10 10 -
65 to 74 1 * * * * * *
75 or over 1 * * * * * *
Prefer not to say [ = * * * * *
How would you describe your
gender?
Female a7 7 7 14 35 34 -
Male 38 5 3 5 1" 14 -
Other _ = * * * - *
Prefer not to say 11 2 - 1 5 3 -

57
Page 70




Question 1: Please indicate how strongly you agree or disagree with the following
proposed changes to the School Transport Policy: To amend the Home to School
Transport policy to clarify that school transport would not be removed from children
attending a non-catchment school if a place at their catchment school, or a school closer
to their home, becomes available

Strongly Neither agree Strongly
Base dizagree Dizagree nor disagree Agree agree Don't know
Total 143 14 10 20 52 52 -
Are there any children or young
people up to the age of 18 living
in your household (including
yourself)?
Yes 111 10 6 17 39 39 -
No 30 4 4 2 10 10 -
Prefer not to say [ = * * * * *
Do any of the children or young
people in your household
currently receive Home to School
or Post-16 Transport provided by
Hampshire County Council?
Yes 60 6 4 10 23 17 -
No L 4 2 7 13 18 -
Don't know 1 * * * * * *
Prefer not to say 3 = * * * * *
Do any of the children or young
people in your household have
either of the following?
Special Educational Heeds 60 3 2 T 25 22 -
Physical disabilities 21 - - 4 7 10 -
Heither of these 42 3 3 ] 10 18 -
Prefer not to say 5 = * * * * *
VWhat is your total annual
household income, from all
sources, before tax and other
deductions?

Up to £10,000 4 * * * * * *
£10,001 to £20,000 12 1 - 2 4 5 -
£20,001 to £30,000 17 2 2 3 6 4 -
£30,001 to £40,000 7 * * * * * *
£40,001 to £50,000 3 * * * * * *
£50,001 to £60,000 11 - 1 - 2 ] -
£60,001 to £70,000 3 * * * * * *
£70,001 to £80,000 7 = * * * * *
£20,001 to £90,000 3 = * * * * *

£90,001 to £100,000 4 * * * * * *
£100,001 or over 1] = * * * * *
Don't know 5 = * * * * *

Prefer not to say 53 3 4 12 Pl 13 -

58
Page 71




To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to amend the Home to School
Transport Policy to reflect a change in the administration of how appeals are processed?

Strongly Neither agree Strongly
Base dizagree Dizagree nor disagree Agree agree Don't know
Total 155 17 19 59 36 21 3
Is this a personal response, or
are you responding on behalf of
an organisation or group that you
represent?
This is a personal response 151 17 19 57 36 20 2
This response is on behalf of an
organisation or group that | 4 = * * * * *
represent
Howv old are you?
Under 18 - * * * * * *
18 to 24 4 = * * * * *
25 to 34 9 & * * * * *
35t0 44 36 3 [ 15 11 - 1
45to 54 61 5 5 25 1" 11 -
55to 64 29 2 3 13 9 2 -
65 to 74 1 * * * * * *
75 or over 1 * * * * * *
Prefer not to say [ = * * * * *
How would you describe your
gender?
Female a7 7 15 42 21 11 1
Male K 4 2 " 13 7 1
Other _ = * * * - *
Prefer not to say 11 5 2 2 1 1 -

59
Page 72




To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to amend the Home to School
Transport Policy to reflect a change in the administration of how appeals are processed?

Strongly Neither agree Strongly
Base dizagree Dizagree nor disagree Agree agree Don't know
Total 143 17 19 56 35 19 2
Are there any children or young
people up to the age of 18 living
in your household (including
yourself)?
Yes 111 12 18 47 2 13 2
No 30 - 3 9 13 5 -
Prefer not to say [ = * * * * *
Do any of the children or young
people in your household
currently receive Home to School
or Post-16 Transport provided by
Hampshire County Council?
Yes 60 9 12 25 8 5 1
No L 2 2 20 12 7 1
Don't know 1 * * * * * *
Prefer not to say 3 = * * * * *
Do any of the children or young
people in your household have
either of the following?
Special Educational Heeds 60 G 10 25 11 7 1
Physical disabilities 21 1 3 7 7 3 -
Heither of these 42 5 4 17 9 6 1
Prefer not to say 5 = * * * * *
VWhat is your total annual
household income, from all
sources, before tax and other
deductions?

Up to £10,000 4 * * * * * *
£10,001 to £20,000 12 2 2 6 1 1 -
£20,001 to £30,000 17 1 5 3 7 1 -
£30,001 to £40,000 7 * * * * * *
£40,001 to £50,000 3 * * * * * *
£50,001 to £60,000 11 - - 6 3 2 -
£60,001 to £70,000 3 * * * * * *
£70,001 to £30,000 7 = * * * * *
£80,001 to £90,000 3 * * * * * *

£90,001 to £100,000 4 * * * * * *
£100,001 or over 1] = * * * * *
Don't know 5 = * * * * *

Prefer not to say 53 ] L] 17 ] £} 1

60
Page 73




Question 5 To what extent do you agree or disagree that the following circumstances
would not on their own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the young person
aged under 18 to transport? Parents’ and carers’ work hours not fitting in with public
service transport times or college times would not on itz own generally be considered as
exceptional, entitling the young person aged under 18 to transport

Strongly Neither agree Strongly
Base dizagree Dizagree nor disagree Agree agree Don't know
Total 156 52 28 14 27 30 5
Is this a personal response, or
are you responding on behalf of
an organisation or group that you
represent?
This is a personal response 152 50 27 14 26 30 5
This response is on behalf of an
organisation or group that | 4 = * * * * *
represent
Howv old are you?
Under 18 * * * * * *
113 to 24 & * * * * *
25 to 34 & * * * * *
35t0 44 kT 11 [ 2 7 10 1
45to 54 61 25 10 2 [ 9 3
55to 64 29 7 6 3 9 4 -
65 to 74 1 * * * * * *
75 or over 1 * * * * * *
Prefer not to say [ = * * * * *
How would you describe your
gender?
Female 96 32 17 10 186 19
Male 38 9 7 3 8 9
Other _ = * * * - *
Prefer not to say 12 [ 2 - 2 1 1

61
Page 74




Question 5 To what extent do you agree or disagree that the following circumstances
would not on their own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the young person
aged under 18 to transport? Parents’ and carers’ work hours not fitting in with public
service transport times or college times would not on itz own generally be considered as
exceptional, entitling the young person aged under 18 to transport

Strongly Neither agree Strongly
Base dizagree Dizagree nor disagree Agree agree Don't know
Total 148 49 26 13 26 30 5
Are there any children or young
people up to the age of 18 living
in your household (including
yourself)?
Yes 113 39 20 9 17 24 2
No 29 7 5 4 8 5 -
Prefer not to say [ = * * * * *
Do any of the children or young
people in your household
currently receive Home to School
or Post-16 Transport provided by
Hampshire County Council?
Yes 61 28 9 2 L] ] 2
No L 10 9 1 9 15 -
Don't know 1 * * * * * *
Prefer not to say 3 = * * * * *
Do any of the children or young
people in your household have
either of the following?
Special Educational Heeds 61 26 10 5 9 g 3
Physical disabilities 21 9 4 2 2 3 1
Heither of these 42 10 ] 3 [} 14 1
Prefer not to say & = * * * * *
VWhat is your total annual
household income, from all
sources, before tax and other
deductions?

Up to £10,000 4 * * * * * *
£10,001 to £20,000 12 5 2 2 2 1 -
£20,001 to £30,000 17 5 5 2 1 4 -
£30,001 to £40,000 7 * * * * * *
£40,001 to £50,000 3 * * * * * *
£50,001 to £60,000 11 2 3 - 2 3 1
£60,001 to £70,000 3 * * * * * *
£70,001 to £80,000 3 = * * * * *
£20,001 to £90,000 3 = * * * * *

£90,001 to £100,000 4 * * * * * *
£100,001 or over 1] = * * * * *
Don't know 5 = * * * * *

Prefer not to say 53 22 10 3 ] [ Z

62
Page 75




Question 5 To what extent do you agree or disagree that the following circumstances
would not on their own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the young person
aged under 18 to transport? Parents’ and carers’ child-care arrangements not fitting in
with public service transport times or college times would not on its own generally be
considered as exceptional, entitling the young person aged under 18 to transport

Strongly Neither agree Strongly
Base dizagree Dizagree nor disagree Agree agree Don't know
Total 156 47 33 18 26 27 5
Is this a personal response, or
are you responding on behalf of
an organisation or group that you
represent?
This is a personal response 152 45 32 18 25 27 5
This response is on behalf of an
organisation or group that | 4 = * * * * *
represent
Howv old are you?
Under 18 * * * * * *
113 to 24 & * * * * *
25 to 34 & * * * * *
35t0 44 kT 9 10 2 7 2 1
45to 54 61 23 10 10 [ 9 3
55to 64 29 7 7 3 8 4 -
65 to 74 1 * * * * * *
75 or over 1 * * * * * *
Prefer not to say [ = * * * * *
How would you describe your
gender?
Female 96 28 20 14 15 17
Male 38 2 10 3 7 ]
Other _ = * * * - *
Prefer not to say 12 [ 2 - 2 1 1

63
Page 76




Question 5 To what extent do you agree or disagree that the following circumstances
would not on their own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the young person
aged under 18 to transport? Parents’ and carers’ child-care arrangements not fitting in
with public service transport times or college times would not on its own generally be
considered as exceptional, entitling the young person aged under 18 to transport

Strongly Neither agree Strongly
Base dizagree Dizagree nor disagree Agree agree Don't know
Total 148 44 32 17 24 27 5
Are there any children or young
people up to the age of 18 living
in your household (including
yourself)?
Yes 113 34 25 13 15 21 2
No 29 7 5 4 8 5 -
Prefer not to say [ = * * * * *
Do any of the children or young
people in your household
currently receive Home to School
or Post-16 Transport provided by
Hampshire County Council?
Yes 61 23 14 9 4 7 2
No L 2 10 3 10 13 -
Don't know 1 * * * * * *
Prefer not to say 3 = * * * * *
Do any of the children or young
people in your household have
either of the following?
Special Educational Heeds 61 25 14 [ [ 7 3
Physical disabilities 21 2 5 2 2 3 1
Heither of these 42 6 9 [} T 13 1
Prefer not to say & = * * * * *
VWhat is your total annual
household income, from all
sources, before tax and other
deductions?

Up to £10,000 4 * * * * * *
£10,001 to £20,000 12 5 3 2 1 1 -
£20,001 to £30,000 17 4 5 2 2 4 -
£30,001 to £40,000 7 * * * * * *
£40,001 to £50,000 3 * * * * * *
£50,001 to £60,000 11 2 2 - 3 3 1
£60,001 to £70,000 3 * * * * * *
£70,001 to £80,000 3 = * * * * *
£20,001 to £90,000 3 = * * * * *

£90,001 to £100,000 4 * * * * * *
£100,001 or over 1] = * * * * *
Don't know 5 = * * * * *

Prefer not to say 53 19 11 [ 7 [ Z

64
Page 77




Question 5 To what extent do you agree or disagree that the following circumstances
would not on their own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the young person
aged under 18 to transport? Parents and carers needing to get other children to and from
school would not on itz own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the young
person aged under 18 to transport

Strongly Neither agree Strongly
Base dizagree Dizagree nor disagree Agree agree Don't know
Total 156 55 37 16 13 M 4
Is this a personal response, or
are you responding on behalf of
an organisation or group that you
represent?
This is a personal response 152 53 36 16 12 31 Z
This response is on behalf of an
organisation or group that | 4 = * * * * *
represent
Howv old are you?
Under 18 * * * * * *
113 to 24 & * * * * *
25 to 34 & * * * * *
35t0 44 kT 12 2 3 3 10 1
45to 54 61 28 12 9 3 9 2
55to 64 29 9 2 2 5 5 -
65 to 74 1 * * * * * *
75 or over 1 * * * * * *
Prefer not to say [ = * * * * *
How would you describe your
gender?
Female 96 32 24 10 7 21 2
Male 38 12 9 5 3 ] 1
Other _ = * * * - *
Prefer not to say 12 [ 2 - 2 1 1

65
Page 78




Question 5 To what extent do you agree or disagree that the following circumstances
would not on their own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the young person
aged under 18 to transport? Parents and carers needing to get other children to and from
school would not on itz own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the young
person aged under 18 to transport

Strongly Neither agree Strongly
Base dizagree Dizagree nor disagree Agree agree Don't know
Total 148 52 35 15 12 M 4
Are there any children or young
people up to the age of 18 living
in your household (including
yourself)?
Yes 113 42 28 1 6 23 3
No 29 7 6 4 5 7 -
Prefer not to say [ = * * * * *
Do any of the children or young
people in your household
currently receive Home to School
or Post-16 Transport provided by
Hampshire County Council?
Yes 61 30 2 7 3 10 3
No L 9 17 3 3 12 -
Don't know 1 * * * * * *
Prefer not to say 3 * * * * * *
Do any of the children or young
people in your household have
either of the following?
Special Educational Heeds 61 & 11 5 2 10 2
Physical disabilities 21 10 4 1 1 4 1
Heither of these 42 ] 14 4 4 11 1
Prefer not to say & = * * * * *
VWhat is your total annual
household income, from all
sources, before tax and other
deductions?

Up to £10,000 4 * * * * * *
£10,001 to £20,000 12 6 2 2 1 1 -
£20,001 to £30,000 17 7 2 1 - 7 -
£30,001 to £40,000 7 * * * * * *
£40,001 to £50,000 3 * * * * * *
£50,001 to £60,000 11 3 5 - 1 2 -
£60,001 to £70,000 3 * * * * * *
£70,001 to £80,000 3 = * * * * *
£20,001 to £90,000 3 = * * * * *

£90,001 to £100,000 4 * * * * * *
£100,001 or over 1] = * * * * *
Don't know 5 = * * * * *

Prefer not to say 53 Pl 11 5 5 T Z

66
Page 79




Question 5 To what extent do you agree or disagree that the following circumstances
would not on their own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the young person
aged under 18 to transport? Having to use the family vehicle (including Mobility vehicle
provided for the student) for other purposes would not on its own generally be
considered as exceptional, entitling the young person aged under 18 to transport

Strongly Neither agree Strongly
Base dizagree Dizagree nor disagree Agree agree Don't know
Total 157 47 29 30 19 27 5
Is this a personal response, or
are you responding on behalf of
an organisation or group that you
represent?
This is a personal response 153 45 28 30 18 27 Z
This response is on behalf of an
organisation or group that | 4 = * * * * *
represent
Howv old are you?
Under 18 * * * * * *
113 to 24 & * * * * *
25 to 34 & * * * * *
35t0 44 kT 10 9 4 4 9 1
45to 54 62 22 " 18 3 3 2
55to 64 29 6 6 2 8 7 -
65 to 74 1 * * * * * *
75 or over 1 * * * * * *
Prefer not to say [ = * * * * *
How would you describe your
gender?
Female a7 27 20 21 1" 186 2
Male 38 10 [ [ L] 9 1
Other _ = * * * - *
Prefer not to say 12 7 1 1 1 1 1

67
Page 80




Question 5 To what extent do you agree or disagree that the following circumstances
would not on their own generally be considered as exceptional, entitling the young person
aged under 18 to transport? Having to use the family vehicle (including Mobility vehicle
provided for the student) for other purposes would not on its own generally be
considered as exceptional, entitling the young person aged under 18 to transport

Strongly Neither agree Strongly
Base dizagree Dizagree nor disagree Agree agree Don't know
Total 150 46 27 28 18 27 4
Are there any children or young
people up to the age of 18 living
in your household (including
yourself)?
Yes 113 35 22 22 11 20 3
No 30 7 5 5 7 6 -
Prefer not to say [ = * * * * *
Do any of the children or young
people in your household
currently receive Home to School
or Post-16 Transport provided by
Hampshire County Council?
Yes 61 23 9 14 4 ] 3
No L 10 " 5 7 11 -
Don't know 1 * * * * * *
Prefer not to say 3 = * * * * *
Do any of the children or young
people in your household have
either of the following?
Special Educational Heeds 61 25 13 11 3 7 2
Physical disabilities 21 9 5 3 1 2 1
Heither of these 42 7 [ 10 [ 12 1
Prefer not to say & = * * * * *
VWhat is your total annual
household income, from all
sources, before tax and other
deductions?

Up to £10,000 4 * * * * * *
£10,001 to £20,000 12 4 2 2 2 2 -
£20,001 to £30,000 17 4 3 4 2 4 -
£30,001 to £40,000 7 * * * * * *
£40,001 to £50,000 3 * * * * * *
£50,001 to £60,000 11 2 3 1 1 4 -
£60,001 to £70,000 3 * * * * * *
£70,001 to £80,000 3 = * * * * *
£20,001 to £90,000 3 = * * * * *

£90,001 to £100,000 4 * * * * * *
£100,001 or over 1] = * * * * *
Don't know 5 = * * * * *

Prefer not to say 54 22 T L] g [ Z

68
Page 81




Easy Read response form data tables

Question 1 — Do you agree or disagree with the following idea?
How far it is from a child's home to their school should be
measured from their home to the nearest school entrance.

Base Agree HNot sure Disagree Don't know
Total T - 2 5 -
Have you completed this
survey:
For yourself? T * * * *
For an organisation? - * * * *
How old are you?
Under 16 - * * * *
16-24 - * * * *
25-34 - : : : :
3544 1 * * * *
45-54 & * * * *
55-54 - : : : :
65-74 - * * * *
75-84 - * * * *
85+ - * * * *
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Are you?
Male? - * * * *
Female? 7 * * * *
Other - * * * *
% % % %

Prefer not to say

69
Page 82




Baze

Question 1 - Do you agree or disagree with the following idea?
How far it is from a child's home to their school should be
measured from their home to the nearest school entrance.

Agree Not sure Dizagree Don't know

Total

Do any children or young
people aged up to 18 years old
live in your household?

Yes

No - no-one under 16 years old
live in my household.

Prefer not to say

Do any of the children or
young people in your
household currently use
Hampshire County Council's
school transport?

Yes - they get school
transport for free

Yes - they pay for school
transport

No

Prefer not to say

Do any children or young
people in your household
have:

Special Education Needs

A dizability, illness or problem
that makes it difficult for them
to walk.

None of the above

Prefer not to say

Do you know the total income
of your household?

Yes
| do not know

Prefer not to say

- 7 5 -

70
Page 83




Question 1 - Do you agree or disagree with the following idea?
How far it is from a child's home to their school should be
measured using the nearest road that most cars can use.

Base Agree Hot sure Disagree Don't know
Total 7 4 1 2 -
Have you completed this
survey:
For yourzelf? T * * * *
For an organisation? - * * * *
How old are you?
Under 16 - * * * *
16-24 - * * * *
25-34 - * * * *
3544 1 * * * *
45-54 & * * * *
55-64 - * * * *
65-74 - * * * *
75-84 - * * * *
85+ - * * * *
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Are you?
Male? - * * * *
Female? 7 * * * *
Other - * * * *

Prefer not to say

71
Page 84




Baze

Question 1 - Do you agree or disagree with the following idea?
How far it is from a child's home to their school should be
measured using the nearest road that most cars can use.

Agree Not sure Dizagree Don't know

Total

Do any children or young
people aged up to 18 years old
live in your household?

Yes

No - no-one under 16 years old
live in my household.

Prefer not to say

Do any of the children or
young people in your
household currently use
Hampshire County Council's
school transport?

Yes - they get school
transport for free

Yes - they pay for school
transport

No

Prefer not to say

Do any children or young
people in your household
have:

Special Education Needs

A dizability, illness or problem
that makes it difficult for them
to walk.

None of the above

Prefer not to say

Do you know the total income
of your household?

Yes
| do not know

Prefer not to say

4 1 2 .

72
Page 85




Question 1 - Do you agree or disagree with the following idea?
School transport should not be stopped if a place is available at a
school nearer to the young person's home.

Base Agree Hot sure Disagree Don't know
Total 7 ] 1 - -
Have you completed this
survey:
For yourzelf? T * * * *
For an organisation? - * * * *
How old are you?
Under 16 - * * * *
16-24 - * * * *
25-34 - * * * *
3544 1 * * * *
45-54 & * * * *
55-64 - * * * *
65-74 - * * * *
75-84 - * * * *
85+ - * * * *
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Are you?
Male? - * * * *
Female? 7 * * * *
Other - * * * *

Prefer not to say

73
Page 86




Baze

Question 1 - Do you agree or disagree with the following idea?
School transport should not be stopped if a place is available ata
school nearer to the young person's home.

Agree Not sure Dizagree Don't know

Total

Do any children or young
people aged up to 18 years old
live in your household?

Yes

No - no-one under 16 years old
live in my household.

Prefer not to say

Do any of the children or
young people in your
household currently use
Hampshire County Council's
school transport?

Yes - they get school
transport for free

Yes - they pay for school
transport

No

Prefer not to say

Do any children or young
people in your household
have:

Special Education Needs

A dizability, illness or problem
that makes it difficult for them
to walk.

None of the above

Prefer not to say

Do you know the total income
of your household?

Yes
| do not know

Prefer not to say

G 1 - -

74
Page 87




Question 3 - Do you agree or disagree that the Home to School
Transport Policy should change to explain how appeals are now
made?

Base Dizagree Hot Sure Agree Don't know
Total 7 - - 7 -
Have you completed this
survey:
For yourzelf? T * * * *
For an organisation? - * * * *
How old are you?
Under 16 - * * * *
16-24 - * * * *
25-34 - * * * *
3544 1 * * * *
45-54 & * * * *
55-64 - * * * *
65-74 - * * * *
75-84 - * * * *
85+ - * * * *
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Are you?
Male? - * * * *
Female? 7 * * * *
Other - * * * *

Prefer not to say

75
Page 88




Question 3 - Do you agree or disagree that the Home to School
Transport Policy should change to explain how appeals are now
made?
Baze Disagree Not Sure Agree Don't know
Total 7 - - 7 -
Do any children or young
people aged up to 18 years old
live in your household?
YES ?’ * t * *
Ho - no-one under 16 years old . . . .
live in my household.
Prefer not to say - = * = =
Do any of the children or
young people in your
household currently use
Hampshire County Council's
school transport?
Yes - they get school 5 . . . .
transport for free
Yes - they pay for school 4 . . . .
transport
HD 3 * t * *
Prefer not to say - * E * *
Do any children or young
people in your household
have:
Special Education Needs 4 = * = =
A dizability, illness or problem
that makes it difficult for them 2 * * * *
to walk.
Hone of the above 1 * * * *
Prefer not to say - * E * *
Do you know the total income
of your household?
YES 1 * t * *
| do not know 1 * * * *
Prefer not to say 5 * * * *

76
Page 89




Question 5 - Do you agree or disagree that this reason could give
under 18-year-olds the chance to use school transport? A young
person may not get transport if their parent or carer's working
hours do not fit in with public transport times or college times.

Base Agree Not sure Disagree Don't know
Total 7 1 2 4 -
Have you completed this
survey:
For yourself? T * * * *
For an organisation? - * * * *
How old are you?
Under 16 - * * * *
16-24 - * * * *
25-34 - * * * *
3544 1 * * * *
45-54 6 * * * .
Bh-64 - * * * *
65-74 - * * * *
75-84 - * * * *
85+ - * * * *
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Are you?
Male? - * * * *
Female? 7 * * * *
Other - * * * *
% % % %

Prefer not to say

77
Page 90




Question 5 — Do you agree or disagree that this reason could give
under 18-year-olds the chance to use school transport? A young
person may not get transport if their parent or carer's working
hours do not fit in with public transport times or college times.

Base Agree Not sure Disagree Don't know
Total T 1 2 4 -
Do any children or young
people aged up to 18 years old
live in your household?
YES ?’ * * * *
Ho - no-one under 16 years old . . . .
live in my household. )
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Do any of the children or
young people in your
household currently use
Hampshire County Council's
school transport?
Yes - they get school 3 . . . .
transport for free
Yes - they pay for school 1 . . . .
transport
HD 3 * * * *
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Do any children or young
people in your household
have:
Special Education Needs 4 * * * *
A disability, illness or problem
that makes it difficult for them 2 * * * *
to walk.
Hone of the above 1 * * * *
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Do you know the total income
of your household?
Yes 1 & & & &
| do not know 1 * * * *
Prefer not to say B * * * *

78
Page 91




Question 5 - Do you agree or disagree that this reason could give
under 18-year-olds the chance to use school transport? A young

person may not get transport if their parent or carer's child care

hours do not fit in with public transport times or college times.

Base Agree Not sure Disgree Don't know
Total 7 - 1 & -
Have you completed this
survey:
For yourself? T * * * *
For an organisation? - * * * *
How old are you?
Under 16 - * * * *
16-24 - * * * *
25-34 - * * * *
3544 1 * * * *
45-54 [ x x . .
Bh-64 - * * * *
65-74 - * * * *
75-84 - : : : :
85+ - * * * *
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Are you?
Male? - * * * *
Female? 7 * * * *
Other - * * * *
% % % %

Prefer not to say

79
Page 92




Question 5 — Do you agree or disagree that this reason could give
under 18-year-olds the chance to use school transport? A young

person may not get transport if their parent or carer's child care

hours do not fit in with public transport times or college times.

Base Agree Not sure Disgree Don't know
Total T - 1 [ -
Do any children or young
people aged up to 18 years old
live in your household?
YES ?’ * * * *
Ho - no-one under 16 years old . . . .
live in my household. )
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Do any of the children or
young people in your
household currently use
Hampshire County Council's
school transport?
Yes - they get school 3 . . . .
transport for free
Yes - they pay for school 1 . . . .
transport
HD 3 * * * *
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Do any children or young
people in your household
have:
Special Education Needs 4 * * * *
A disability, illness or problem
that makes it difficult for them 2 * * * *
to walk.
Hone of the above 1 * * * *
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Do you know the total income
of your household?
Yes 1 & & & &
| do not know 1 * * * *
Prefer not to say B * * * *

80
Page 93




Question 5 - Do you agree or disagree that this reasons could
give under 13-year-olds the chance to use school transport? A
young person may not get transport if their parent or carer
needs to take other children to and from school.

Base Agree Not sure Disagree Don't know
Total 7 1 1 5 -
Have you completed this
survey:
For yourself? T * * * *
For an organisation? - * * * *
How old are you?
Under 16 - * * * *
16-24 - * * * *
25-34 - * * * *
3544 1 * * * *
45-54 6 * * * .
Bh-64 - * * * *
65-74 - * * * *
75-84 - * * * *
85+ - * * * *
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Are you?
Male? - * * * *
Female? 7 * * * *
Other - * * * *
% % % %

Prefer not to say

81
Page 94




Question 5 — Do you agree or disagree that this reasons could
give under 13-year-olds the chance to use school transport? A
young person may not get transport if their parent or carer
needs to take other children to and from school.

Base Agree Not sure Disagree Don't know
Total T 1 1 5 -
Do any children or young
people aged up to 18 years old
live in your household?
YES ?’ * * * *
Ho - no-one under 16 years old . . . .
live in my household. )
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Do any of the children or
young people in your
household currently use
Hampshire County Council's
school transport?
Yes - they get school 3 . . . .
transport for free
Yes - they pay for school 1 . . . .
transport
HD 3 * * * *
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Do any children or young
people in your household
have:
Special Education Needs 4 * * * *
A disability, illness or problem
that makes it difficult for them 2 * * * *
to walk.
Hone of the above 1 * * * *
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Do you know the total income
of your household?
Yes 1 & & & &
| do not know 1 * * * *
Prefer not to say B * * * *

82
Page 95




Question 5 - Do you agree or disagree that this reason could give
under 18-year-olds the chance to use school transport? A young
person may not get transport if their parent or carer have other
reasons to use the family car.

Base Agree Not sure Disagree Don't know
Total 7 1 3 3 -
Have you completed this
survey:
For yourself? T * * * *
For an organisation? - * * * *
How old are you?
Under 16 - * * * *
16-24 - * * * *
25-34 - * * * *
3544 1 * * * *
45-54 6 * * * .
Bh-64 - * * * *
65-74 - * * * *
75-84 - * * * *
85+ - * * * *
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Are you?
Male? - * * * *
Female? 7 * * * *
Other - * * * *
% % % %

Prefer not to say

83
Page 96




Question 5 — Do you agree or disagree that this reason could give
under 18-year-olds the chance to use school transport? A young
person may not get transport if their parent or carer have other
reasons to use the family car.

Base Agree Not sure Dizagree Don't know
Total T 1 3 3 -
Do any children or young
people aged up to 18 years old
live in your household?
YES ?’ * * * *
Ho - no-one under 16 years old . . . .
live in my household. )
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Do any of the children or
young people in your
household currently use
Hampshire County Council's
school transport?
Yes - they get school 3 . . . .
transport for free
Yes - they pay for school 1 . . . .
transport
HD 3 * * * *
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Do any children or young
people in your household
have:
Special Education Needs 4 * * * *
A dizability, illness or problem
that makes it difficult for them 2 * * * *
to walk.
Hone of the above 1 * * * *
Prefer not to say - * * * *
Do you know the total income
of your household?
YES 1 * * * *
| do not know 1 * * * *
Prefer not to say 5 * * * *

84
Page 97




Appendix B

Education Provider Consultation Findings & Analysis
SUMMARY OF PROVIDER CONSULTATION

Responses to the consultation with Post 16 Education
Providers

Who responded?

There were 6 responses to the consultation questionnaire sent directly
to 21 Post 16 Education Providers.

A copy of the consultation questionnaire is provided in Appendix one.

Findings from the consultation with Post 16 Education
Providers

Summary of Key Findings

There was overall agreement with proposed statement that the listed
scenarios should not ordinarily warrant the award of transport if this was the
only scenario being presented when applying for support with transport,
scenarios included:

Parents’ and carers’ work hours not fitting in with public service
transport times or college times;

» Parents’ and carers’ child-care arrangements not fitting in with public
service transport times or college times;

» Parents’ and carers’ needing to get other children to and from school,

» Having to use the family vehicle (including Mobility vehicle provided
for the student) for other purposes, e.g. travel to and from work, or
transporting siblings to school/college;

Although not formally requested, respondents provided an additional
unstructured response which confirmed that although the scenarios may not
be considered as warranting transport support on their own, they should
however be taken into consideration alongside other circumstances to
establish if transport support is necessary for the individual and that
assessments should be undertaken on a case by case basis.

Responding Education Providers also identified that some of their learners
would not be able to access their prayisiofid ort with transport was not
P (Iyage b@pp P



provided by the Council. Confirming that transport can be a significant barrier
to some young learners. For many young learners, either the distance they
were expected to travel or their vulnerability in the community would mean
travelling independently on public transport was not a reasonable option and
that in general, learners with SEND typically have to travel further than learners
without SEND to access education appropriate and as a result the financial
impact to support/facilitate education was higher.

Most of the respondents identified that comprehensive training to enable a
young person to travel independently would be beneficial, supporting the
development of their independence and reducing pressure on budgets to meet
future growing demand.

It was also identified that improved support in the community at evenings and
weekends would also reduce pressure on educational services as young
learners have limited options to access services in the evenings or weekends,
whilst adult day services have been significantly reduced. This could be a
significant factor in relation to the growing demand for education services post
19.

Analysis of Consultation Responses

There was majority agreement that the presented scenarios should not
automatically warrant support with transport on their own but should be
considered alongside other scenarios/circumstances presented in a learners
application for support with transport.

To what extent do you agree or disagree that the
following would not normally be considered as
exceptional if they were the only circumstance

being presented?

a. Parents’ and carers’ work hours... || EGTKEEIEINGE 3
b. Parents’ and carers’ child-care... | IEGEGTNNENGEG 3
c. Parents’ and carers’ needing to... | IEGREGEG 3
d. Having to use the family... I IIGGIEGEGE 3

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

B Stongly disagree/Disagree M Neither agree nor disagree

Agree/Strongly agree
Page 99



Appendix One
Post 16 Education Provider Consultation Questionnaire

The Council expects the majority of young people aged over 16 to make their
own travel arrangements in order to attend their education placement. The
Council acknowledges that there will be some young people (exceptions) where
they are unable to make their own travel arrangements (even if they are
supported by a parent/carer), the Council, in these circumstances it would
provide assistance.

Q1 - When assessing the needs & circumstances of young people to identify if
exceptional circumstances exist and warrant assistance with their travel arrangements,
to what extent do you agree or disagree that the following would not normally be
considered as exceptional if they were the only circumstance being presented?

Please put a X against your response.

a. Parents’ and carers’ work hours not fitting in with public service transport times
or college times
Strongly Disagree
Disagree
Neither Agree Nor Disagree
Agree
Strongly Agree
Don’t Know

b. Parents’ and carers’ child-care arrangements not fitting in with public service
transport times or college times.
Strongly Disagree
Disagree
Neither Agree Nor Disagree
Agree
Strongly Agree
Don’t Know

c. Parents’ and carers’ needing to get other children to and from school.
Strongly Disagree
Disagree
Neither Agree Nor Disagree
Agree
Strongly Agree
Don’t Know

d. Having to use the family vehicle (including Mobility vehicle provided for the
student) for other purposes, e.g. travel to and from work, or transporting siblings
to school/college
Strongly Disagree
Disagree
Neither Agree Nor Disagree
Agree
Strongly Agree
Don’t Know

Page 100



Q2 — The Post-16 Transport Policy Statement has focused the Council’s support on
LDD students, usually they have an EHCP. Please provide any comments on their
transport needs when attending your setting.

Q3 — The cohort of students aged over 19 for whom the Children’s Services
Department provides transport, is increasing in numbers. Please provide any
comments on their transport needs, if different from above, when attending your
setting.

Q4 - The forecast growth in the Post 16 sector, particularly over 19 students, is
bringing unprecedented pressure on the service and its budget. Do you have any
comments on how providers and the Council can work together to generate efficiencies
and savings for both providers and the service?

88
Page 101



Appendix

Equality Impact Assessment

Name of project or proposal (required): Proposed Changes to Post 16 Transport Policy Statement 2020
Is this project a Transformation project? (required): Neither

Name of accountable officer (required): Martin Goff

Email (required): martin.goff@hants.gov.uk

Department (required): Children's Services
Date of assessment (required): 29/06/2020
Is this a detailed or overview EIA? (required): Detailed

Describe the current service or policy. This question has a limit of 700 characters; approximately 100
words (required): The Post 16 Transport service provides transport for about 330 users each day and costs
£1.3m p.a. The policy statement details when and how the Council will support attendance in Post 16
education where travel/transport is perceived as a barrier. It allows parents/carers and users to understand
how young people aged over 16 and in education may be eligible for a local authority funded transport
service.

Geographical impact (required): All Hampshire

Describe the proposed change. This question has a limit of 700 characters; approximately 100 words
(required): To amend the Post 16 Transport Policy Statement and provide greater clarity through improved
wording and understanding so that those reading the policy are able to identify who may be eligible to
benefit from the service. It details the duty to provide transport where necessary to facilitate assistance but
explains to parents that for those young people under 18 the Council has an expectation that parents will
provide transport assistance themselves.

Who does this impact assessment cover? (required): Service users
Has engagement or consultation been carried out? (required): Yes

Describe the consultation or engagement you have performed or are intending to perform. This question
has a limit of 700 characters; approximately 100 words (required): The Council carried out an open
consultation designed to give Hampshire residents and wider stakeholders including those living outside
Hampshire the opportunity to have their say about proposed changes to the Home to School Transport
Policy and Post-16 Transport Policy. In total there were 165 responses to the consultation, including paper
and online responses. The consultation ran between 13 January 2020 and 23 February 2020. 21 Education
Providers of Post 16 education were also consulted directly with 6 responses being received. The feedback
from both Post 16 Education Providers and the public in relation has been reflected in the amended policy
statement that is being recommended.

Age (required): Medium

Impact (required): The established policy and legislation affect learners at specific ages differently,
particularly those aged 16 on 1st September 2020 and those aged 17 on that date, although only until their
18th birthday. Therefore, the impact on age identified here is in respect to the legislative requirements and
the subsequent considerations made by the Council 88en deciding on what support is necessary in relation
to travel and transport to facilitate a young Ra@e a]IQﬂance at their place of education. As a young


mailto:martin.goff@hants.gov.uk

person becomes a Post 16 learner, the Council considers transport support is only necessary if it is essential
to enable them to attend their programme of study. If the young person is able to access other forms of
travel, support/funding, and has the available means to access their education setting, then they would be
expected to use these in the first instance.

Mitigation (required): Where transport is necessary to facilitate attendance, the Council will provide
transport assistance. Each young person will be considered on a case by case basis to ensure provision
reflects actual need.

Disability (required): Medium

Impact (required): The vast majority of young people over the age of 16 in education will attend placements
which are accessible from their home address. However, where a young person or a family member (with
responsibility for the young person) has SEND, a health issue/concern, or disability this may make accessing
an education placement difficult or impossible without the Council providing support with travel/transport
arrangements. The proposed policy concerns provision for this cohort of learners (and their families) who
fall into this category and ensures support is available if it is considered necessary in order for the young
person to attend their education placement / training. Where possible and where appropriate, the Council
will support young people to use public transport and make their own journeys independently, and will
expect parents to provide transport assistance.

Mitigation (required): Where transport is necessary to facilitate attendance, the Council will provide
transport assistance. Each young person will be considered on a case by case basis to ensure provision
reflects actual need. Where support is necessary to facilitate attendance due to the needs/circumstances of
the young person and or their families, then appropriate provision will be made. The possible savings
identified allows for 70% of 16 year olds still retaining access to LA funded transport support.

Sexual orientation (required): Neutral

Race (required): Neutral

Religion or belief (required): Neutral

Gender reassignment (required): Neutral

Gender (required): Neutral

Marriage or civil partnership (required): Neutral

Pregnancy and maternity (required): Neutral

Poverty (required): Neutral

Rurality (required): Medium

Impact (required): Families living in rural areas often face a longer journey and journey time to access post
16 provision. Public transport may be a more restricted offer. The longer journey and restricted public
transport may limit families’ capacity to support their child's travel.

Mitigation (required): Where transport is necessary to facilitate attendance, the Council will provide
transport assistance. Each young person will be considered on a case by case basis, including the proposed
journey and any limitations on infrastructure, to ensure provision reflects actual need.

Any other brief information which you feel is pertinent to this assessment (optional): The changes to the

Policy Statement are designed to explain to parents / carers that when the Council considers whether it is
necessary to provide transport assistance to a yo rso, d under 18, the Council expects that parents
Page 103



will provide transport assistance unless the specific circumstances mean that the Council need to provide
transport assistance to facilitate attendance. The changes also make it clear that when a young person is
aged 18, parents will not be expected to provide transport assistance.

Please confirm that the accountable officer has agreed the contents of this form (required): Yes

91
Page 104



Appendix D

2020 Transport policy statement for students in further education aged
16-18 and continuing students aged 19.

Name of LEA : Hampshire

Department Responsible: Education

Hampshire County Council 2020/2021 Transport policy statement for students in further education aged
16-19, continuing students and young people aged 19-24 with learning disabilities

1. Commitment
Hampshire County Council (HCC) and its post 16 providers are committed to ensuring transport is

available to enable students to access education and training as set out in this policy statement. Support
is provided either by the County Council or post 16 providers. This policy statement applies for
2020/2021 only and sets out the support available.

There is no automatic entitlement to free home to school or college transport once a student is over 16.
The County Council has considered its resources and the travel to college opportunities for students.
Students can attend a college of choice and, if needed, apply to their college’s student support for
assistance. The cost and mechanical process of transporting young people with special educational needs
is greater and more complex. HCC recognises that families may need a transport service to ensure that
16+ special needs or disabled students can access a place that is suitable for their needs and so do offer,
under discretionary powers, a transport service that requires an annual parental contribution.

2. General transport available
There are a number of public transport service providers in Hampshire. Colleges and schools in

Hampshire have their own transport arrangements but the situation does vary. Students should check
with their setting about the transport arrangements and ticketing prices that can apply to both bus and
train travel. The following link provides the information supplied by colleges and sixth form
establishments.

College and School Details
Other transport support

Post 16 education providers and other agencies provide support with transport in certain cases, for
example:

Cycle schemes

Care to Learn - https://www.gov.uk/care-to-learn/overview
Wheels to Work - http://www3.hants.gov.uk/wheels-to-work
Brain in Hand - http://braininhand.co.uk/

3. Qualification for support from Hampshiﬁa(:%lenti&gncil for students attending colleges and


https://www.gov.uk/care-to-learn/overview
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/wheels-to-work
http://braininhand.co.uk/

schools with sixth forms (including academies)
HCC will assist with travel expenses for post-16 students with special educational needs or a disability. A

parental contribution towards the cost of this transport will be required; the cost will be decided by
applying the following charging schedule:

Distance to travel Annual charge

Up to 5 miles £600
5.01 miles to 7.5 miles £831
7.51 miles to 10 miles £1,164
Over 10 miles £1,330

Transport will normally only be offered if the student has an Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP) or if
the student has a disability which means he/she requires transport arrangements to be provided. The
student or their parents will need to apply for transport and evidence that HCC must provide transport to
facilitate attendance, and evidence that without transport assistance, the student will be unable to
attend the educational placement.

When assessing an application, HCC will refer to the criteria provided in Appendix 1.

4. Post 16 training providers and apprenticeships
The same qualifications as set out in paragraph 3 apply for students attending post 16 training providers.

Students in apprenticeships with employed status do not qualify for any assistance with travel costs.

5. Qualification for support from colleges and schools with sixth forms including academies
In addition to the support available from HCC, post 16 providers may also provide financial support

towards transport costs for certain students such as young parents, those from low income families,
those at risk of being Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEETs). This is determined by the
provider and is often based on how they have locally determined to use ‘hardship’ funds.

Please follow the link below to information provided by post-16 providers regarding transport services.

College and School Details

6. Assistance with transport for students over the age of 19 with learning difficulties or disabilities

Students over the age of 19 may qualify for transport assistance if they are subject to an Education,
Health and Care Plan.

It will then be provided either up until the age of 24 or until the student completes the course, whichever
is the earliest.

The student or their parents will need to apply for transport and evidence that HCC must provide
transport to facilitate attendance and evidence that without transport assistance, the student will be
unable to attend the educational placement.

93
Page 106



When assessing an application for transport assistance, the Council will refer to the criteria provided in
Appendix 1.

7. Independent Travel Training
The County Council provides some mobility/independence training for students with learning difficulties

or disabilities. Children in special schools will be subject to transition plans in year 9 and independence
training can form part of that plan. Some colleges also provide mobility/independence training.

8. Students attending providers outside Hampshire
The County Council may provide assistance with transport to support students attending providers

outside of the county, but students need to qualify for support against the criteria outlined in paragraph
3. The provider attended may also be able to provide some support, see paragraph 5

9. Students attending providers in Hampshire but living outside the county
Such students should apply to their home Local Authority for assistance. However, providers themselves

may provide assistance and are not bound by county boundaries.

10. Applying for assistance with transport
Students wishing to apply for help with transport can do so by accessing the HCC website where further

details are available:

http://www3.hants.gov.uk/yourfuture.htm

Students may also wish to apply to colleges direct for help. Paragraph 12 provides details of the colleges
and their contact details together with an outline of the assistance they provide.

11. Appeals/Complaints
Complaints regarding any aspect of the policy statement must first be taken up with HCC. If these do not

result in a satisfactory outcome, young people or their families may complain to the Secretary of State
for Education.

Students wishing to make an appeal regarding a transport entitlement decision, or subsequent transport
arrangements or a requirement to make a contribution to the cost of travel should write to the Head of
Information Transport and Admissions, Children’s Services Department, Hampshire County Council, The

Castle, Winchester, Hampshire, SO23 8UG. The appeals process is provided in Appendix 2.

12, College and School Details

To be added

94
Page 107


http://www3.hants.gov.uk/yourfuture.htm
http://www3.hants.gov.uk/yourfuture.htm

Appendix 1.
Criteria applied to determine eligibility to transport to a Post 16 provider.

1. The following criteria apply to all students:

Necessity: The Council will provide transport assistance when it is necessary to facilitate the
student’s attendance at their educational setting.

Minimum distance: The journey from home to school/college must be more than three miles,
measured by the nearest available walking route.

Eligible but living within walking distance? Transport may be provided within the walking distance
if it is necessary to facilitate attendance. Factors that may be taken into account, include:

e The student’s ability to walk
e The student’s need to be accompanied by an adult.

Which college or school? Travel assistance will be given to the nearest school or college
considered to be the most suitable placement for the student and which offers a course or
programme which is designed specifically to meet the special needs of the student concerned. If
the course or programme is not specifically designed to meet the needs of those with SEN, travel
assistance will be given to the nearest college offering an appropriate course. A course is deemed
appropriate where it enables a student to meet his or her career objectives.

A student attending their nearest special school or school with a sixth form named in his or her
EHCP may qualify, subject to the other criteria detailed in this Appendix.

Pick-up and drop-off points: Where the distance between a nearest pick-up or drop-off point and
home or college is less than 1.5 miles, HCC will not normally provide transport for that part of the
journey. However, transport may be provided for students within these distances where this is
recommended following an assessment of their individual needs. The criteria used to determine
entitlement within walking distance apply in these circumstances.

Journeys to and from other destinations: Transport is not offered to or from points other than the
college and home.

Waiting Time: where appropriate, the transport arrangement may include a waiting time at the
start or end of the day.

Residential Placements: Some students with complex and/or severe needs are placed in a
residential out of county special school or college because there is no appropriate provision
available locally. Such students will receive transport at the start and end of each term, half term
and at other school/college closures. Any additional transport will be the responsibility of
parents/carers.

2. The following apply additionally to students aged 16 or 17 in September 2020:

(a) Parental Assistance: The Council expect@?at parents and carers take responsibility for
facilitating their child’s attendanp:ageéuia@@ where they are able to do so.



3.

4,

(b)

Families/Applicants may apply for transport and explain their circumstances which make
support from HCC with transport necessary to enable their child to attend their place of
education or training. All requests for transport will be considered on a case by case basis.
Charges: If transport is provided by HCC, a parental contribution may be levied.

When the student’s parents are in receipt of Income Support, income-based Jobseekers
Allowance, income-related Employment and Support Allowance, support under Part VI of
the Immigration and Asylum Act 1999, the guaranteed element of State Pension Credit, Child
Tax Credit (provided you’re not also entitled to Working Tax Credit and have an annual gross
income of no more than £16,190), Working Tax Credit run-on - paid for 4 weeks after you stop
qualifying for Working Tax Credit, or Universal Credit, the charge will be waived. Families in
receipt of free school meals (due to low income) are not required to pay the contribution.

Families with a low income, but not in receipt of the above benefits, where the imposition
of the charge would reduce their income to around £16,190; or those with exceptional
circumstances, may apply for a discretionary waiver or reduction in charge.

The following apply to student’s aged 18 when the transport starts in September 2020 or

a)

b)

already 18 at the time of application or 19 or over and continuing on a course that they
started before their 19th birthday:

Parental assistance: There will be no expectation that a parent will assist with their adult
child’s transport arrangement, although parents who wish to do so will be welcome to
support their adult child’s transport arrangement.

Charges: If transport is provided by HCC, a parental contribution may be levied.

When the student’s parents are in receipt of Income Support, income-based Jobseekers
Allowance, income-related Employment and Support Allowance, support under Part VI of
the Immigration and Asylum Act 1999, the guaranteed element of State Pension Credit,
Child Tax Credit (provided you’re not also entitled to Working Tax Credit and have an
annual gross income of no more than £16,190), Working Tax Credit run-on - paid for 4
weeks after you stop qualifying for Working Tax Credit, or Universal Credit, the charge will
be waived. Families in receipt of free school meals (due to low income) are not required to
pay the contribution.

Families with a low income, but not in receipt of the above benefits, where the imposition
of the charge would reduce their income to around £16,190; or those with exceptional
circumstances, may apply for a discretionary waiver or reduction in charge.

The following applies to students aged 19 or over and starting a new course:

5.

Charges: If transport is provided, no contribution towards the cost of transport applies.

Appendix 2

Home to School Transport - Review/App%s Process

Page 109



Parents and /or Young People who wish to challenge a decision about:

* the transport arrangements offered;

* their own or their child’s eligibility;

* the distance measurement in relation to minimum distances; and
* the safety of the route

* cost

may do so by writing to The Transport Team, Elizabeth Il Court North (2" Floor), Children’s Services
Department, Hampshire County Council, The Castle, Winchester, Hampshire, SO023 8UG.

In the first instance a case will be reviewed by a Senior Officer of HCC.

In cases against refusal of a transport service, there is recourse to a further appeal to an Independent
Appeal Panel.

For concerns about the transport arrangement offered, a senior officer outside of the School Transport
Team and who holds a comprehensive understanding of the transport policy and legislative framework
will make decisions on appeals.

The full Review/Appeals Process in relation to assistance with travel and eligibility is detailed
within Hampshire County Council’s Home to School Transport Policy, a link to which is included
below:

Home to School Transport Policy

The process by which Home to School Transport appeals are handled for a young person attending
a Post-16 provision matches that detailed in this Policy.

97
Page 110


http://documents.hants.gov.uk/transport-home-to-school/HTSTPolicy.docx

Appendix E: The pre-action protocol letter of 2 June 2020

98
Page 111



im 1) irwinmitchell

Your Ref:
Our Ref:

Legal Services
Hampshire County Council

Address: Brunel House, 21 Brunswick Place, Southampton, SO15 2AQ

2 June 2020
EORMAL LETTER BEFORE CLAIM
PURSUANT TO THE JUDICIAL REVIEW PRE-ACTION PROTOCOL
Dear Madam
OUR CLIENTS:

Please note that due to the need to work from home in response to the coronavirus pandemic, this letter
has been sent by email only. We request a formal response by email only.

This is a formal letter before action under the pre-action protocol for judicial review and a response is

requested within 7 days, i.e. by 12 noon on 9 June 2020. We accept that this date for a response is an
abridgment of the normal period provided for under the pre-action protocol for judicial review. We submit

that this abridgment is reasonable in light of the urgency of the case. Applications for transport for
September 2020 are now open and HCC will shortly be making decisions under the policy. There is
insufficient time to provide for 14 days for a formal response and then issue a claim for judicial
review, as a substantive hearing would not be reached until long after the academic year begins. Our
clients require transport from September 2020 to access an education. As set out in section 8 below, we
intend to apply for an expedited rolled up hearing due to the urgency of this case.

1. Proposed Defendant
Hampshire County Council (‘HCC”).
2. TheClaimants

We are instructed by the following four clients:

We have also been contacted by numerous other families concerned about HCC'’s post-16 transport
policy for 2020/21, who are prepared to instruct us if necessary.
%, 0370 1500 100 B irwinmitchell.com ¥ @IrwinMitchell

© Brunel House, 21 Brunswick Place, Southampton, 5015926Q

Irwin Mitchell LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England & Wales wEnuamgrgﬂgﬁél'a% is authorised and regulated by the Solicitors Regulation Authority under SRA number 570654. The
word “partner” used in relation to the LLP, refers to a member of the LLP or any employee of, or consultant to, the LLP (or any affiliated firm). A list of the members of the LLP, and of those non-members who
are designated as partners, is displayed at the LLP’s registered office: Riverside East, 2 Millsands Sheffield, 53 8DT.



3. Details of the matter being challenged
We seek to challenge:

a. The lawfulness of HCC’s ‘2020 Transport policy statement for students in further education
aged 16-18 and continuing students aged 19’ (the “Policy”); and

b. The decision by the Director of Children’s Services to approve the Policy on 27 May 2020.
4 Limitati
It is our position that the limitation dates for a claim for judicial review are as follows:

a. The Policy is a continuing act and for limitation purposes we are treating it as an
ongoing breach; and

b. Limitation to challenge the decision by the Director of Children’s Services to approve

the
Policy is 26 August 2020.
5. Background
Our clients

'is 17 years old and lives at home at

full time support

Due to the nature of || disabilities; | is unable to travel independently to school. There is no
direct public transport available for | to travel from home to school. Even if there was direct
public transport, ean that | is unableto

_ 17 years old and lives at home with.
i ollege
ollege is 13 miles from home and is the nearest

college that can provide the appropriate support and subjects to study.

10
Page 113




cannot use public transport because o disabilities_

is 17 years old and lives at home

attends ollege, which is
College is the nearest college that can provide the appropriate support

9 miles away from home.
and subjects to study.

is 17 years old and lives at home

College is 4 miles away from home and is the nearest college
that can provide the appropriate support and subjects to study.

Backaround

Post-16 transport policy for 2019/20

As you are aware, we exchanged pre-action correspondence with HCC on behalf of a group of clients
to challenge the post-16 policy for 2019/20. At that time, HCC set out that it was only implementing

10
Page 114



changes that were introduced in 2018. However, many families who were granted transport in 2018 were
denied transport for 2019. After receiving a letter before action on behalf of our clients, HCC agreed
to withdraw the new policy. Instead, decisions regarding transport for 2019/20 were made under
the 2018/19 policy. Families were subsequently granted transport.

2020 consultation process

HCC conducted a consultation between 13 January and 23 February regarding its proposed home to
school transport policy and post-16 transport policy for 2020/21. Only the latter policy is under
challenge in this claim.

The public consultation information pack summarises the changes to the (post-16) Policy as follows: “The
County Council proposes to update its Post-16 Transport Policy Statement to set out the
responsibilities of parents and carers of children and young people who receive Post-16 transport. It is
anticipated that this update could result in potential savings to the County Council of approximately
£680,000 per year” (page 2).

We note that the “necessity” test is set out on page 6: “In law, the County Council is required
to provide the support that it deems necessary to facilitate the attendance of young people of sixth form
age who are in education or training.” At pages 6 and 15, HCC sets out that currently transport is
provided where “necessary”. It goes on to say that the changes to the Policy are to “clarify” the
expectations on parents to arrange transport for their children and to evidence where there is
not possible. Then it sets out HCC’s proposals that “the County Council would not consider that
the following circumstances are likely to be exceptional on their own:

parents’ and carers’ work hours or child-care arrangements not fitting in with public
service transport times or college times; or

parents and carers needing to get other children to and from school; or

Having to use the family vehicle (including Mobility vehicle provided for the student) for
other purposes”.

The above is a proposal to apply an “exceptional circumstances” test, as opposed to a “necessity” test.
However, the “necessity” test is referred to immediately afterwards: “Transport would only be
provided where it was necessary to facilitate attendance” (page 15).

In the paragraphs justifying the changes on page 16, HCC again sets out anticipated savings: “It is
anticipated that this change could deliver an estimated saving of £680,000 per year, as a result of fewer
offers for transport being made for students aged under 18" (page 16). It is clear that these
changes do not just provide clarity as to HCC’s existing policy but will mean that fewer families will be
offered transport: “Some service users may not be eligible for transport to their Post-16 provision
under the new policy, as their parent or carer would be expected to arrange their transport until the age
of 18” (page 16).

We note that the total current cost of post-16 transport is £1.3m. Savings of £680,000 would amount to
a massive 52.3% reduction.

The consultation document sets out questions as to whether particular circumstances should on their
own be considered as “exceptional”’, thereby “entitling” the young person to transport. The
circumstances consulted on are those set out above, i.e. parent carers’ working hours, parent carers’
child-care arrangements, parent carers needing to get other children to and from school, and having to
use the vehicle for other purposes. The consultation document therefore presumes the introduction of
an exceptional circumstances test for 16 and 17 year olds and consults on what circumstances
amount to “exceptional”. There are no questions within the consultation document about changes to the
Policy for 18 year olds.

On 18 March the Executive Lead Member for Children’s Services and Young People took the decision to
approve the home to school transport policy. However, no decision was taken regarding HCC’s
post-16 transport policy. Instead, HCC set out that:{lérther stakeholder engagement was required.

Page 115



The only “stakeholder engagement” which took place after the public consultation was approaching

21 post-16 education providers to request their views. The same questions in the public consultation
were put to providers. In the same way as above, HCC presumes the application of an exceptional
circumstances test. Six providers responded, three of which agreed “that the presented scenarios
should not automatically warrant support with transport on their own but should be considered
alongside other scenarios/circumstances presented in a learners application for support with
transport” (page 86 of the Officer Decision Report).

The Policy
The changes to the Policy material to this challenge are those within Appendix 1.

At the top of the Appendix, it is set out that the necessity test applies to all students: “The Council will
provide transport assistance when it is necessary to facilitate the student’s attendance at their
educational setting.”

Whilst there is a distinction in the Education Act 1996 between sixth formers (learners over
compulsory school age but under 19 or who began the course under the age of 19) and adult learners
(learners aged 19 or over starting a new course), HCC’s Policy also distinguishes between 16 and 17
years on the one hand and 18 year olds on the other.

All four of our clients are sixth formers.

It appears that our clients and will be negatively affected by the changes to the Policy
regarding 16 and 17 year olds at paragraph (c). In this section of Appendix 1, despite inserting the word
“necessity” HCC has introduced an exceptional circumstances test:

“(c) Necessity: The Council expects, for children, that their parents and carers take
responsibility for facilitating their child’s attendance in education unless there are exceptional
circumstances which make support with transport necessary for their child to attend their
place of education or training. All requests for assistance will be considered on a case
by case basis. While they may be challenging for parents, the Council does not consider that the
following circumstances are likely to be exceptional on their own:

parents’ work hours or child-care arrangements not fitting in with public service
transport times or college times; or

parents needing to get other children to and from school; or

Having to use the family vehicle (including Mobility vehicle provided for the student)
for other purposes.”

It appears our clients and will be affected by the changes to the Policy regarding 18
year olds, which is set out at paragraph (d). Here a contradictory policy is set out, which is that HCC
expects parents to arrange transport, but HCC does not expect parents to arrange transport:

“(d) Necessity: The Council expects that parents and carers take responsibility for facilitating their
child’s attendance in education. However, the authority will take into account that the
authority cannot expect a parent to support their adult child’s transport arrangement.”

EIA

The EIA for the 27 May 2020 decision sets out that the proposed changes provide: “greater clarity and
understanding through improved wording.”

In respect of disability, the impact is assessed as “low” because transport will be provided where

“necessary”: “This ensures that those that fall under this category are not adversely impacted by the
proposed policy and are still able to access their education setting.”

10
Page 116



It is very difficult to reconcile this impact assessment with anticipated savings of 52.3%. There is no
reference to an anticipated reduction in transport provision for families and no attempt to consider the
impact this might have on disabled teenagers.

The EIA does not reflect the comments made by respondents in the consultation about potential
negative impact, such as those summarised at para 24 of the Officer Decision Report. The feedback
included, for example, concerns that: “the proposed changes may prevent children and young people
from attending post-16 education; may offer children and young people with Special Educational
Needs or Disabilities (SEND) fewer opportunities than available to those without SEND; may restrict the
choice of colleges for children and young people with SEND; and may create a barrier to
education for children and young people who are unable to take public transport independently”.

The EIA does not set out how to mitigate against potential negative impact because no negative
impact is identified.

Officer Decision Report

The changes to the Policy are characterised in the report as:

“More detail and improved clarity for how the Council will consider applications and the type of
travel support available for young persons under 18 years of age, those aged 18, and those
19 year of age and older (and considered under adult duty)

The Council will only provide transport assistance where the child is aged under 18 and

parents and carers evidence that there is no other means by which their child could get to their
place of education.

... the Council will not consider that the following circumstances are likely to be exceptional on
their own:

Parents and carers work hours or childcare arrangements not fitting in with public service
transport times or college times; or

Parent and carers needing to get other children to and from school; or

Having to use the family vehicle (including mobility vehicle provided for the student) for
other purposes” (para 2 and 3)

The report therefore sets out an exceptional circumstances test.

The report identifies the targeted savings of making these changes but does not explain how
the figure of £680,000 has been arrived at. It is not clear in the report that transport provision
will be reduced by the changes. Rather, it says that “The proposals for changes to the Post 16
Transport Policy Statement were to include clauses that clarified the responsibility of parents/carers to
arrange transport for their child to their Post-16 education setting until they become an adult” (para 19).

The report conflates the necessity and the exceptional circumstances tests throughout. The necessity
test is referred to numerous times, but the changes to the policy relate to exceptional circumstances.
Nowhere in the report is the statutory framework referred to, the Education Act 1996, which sets out the
necessity test. Whilst there is a link to the statutory guidance for post-16 transport, there is no
explanation within the report as to what considerations apply under that statutory guidance.

Paragraphs 29 and 30 of the report fail to accurately summarise the EIA. The EIA does not actually
identify that families could lose access to transport due to these changes.

Executive decision

On 14 May 2020 the Executive Lead Member for Children’s Services and Young People was due to take
a decision regarding the implementation of th_il_soPolicy, however it was postponed due to the

coronavirus pandemic. Page 117



On 27 May 2020 the Director of Children’s Services took the decision as recommended to approve the
proposed Policy. The reasons for the decision are set out as follows:

“2.1. The proposed 2020 Policy Statement sought to clarify the circumstances which would
normally not be considered as exceptional, and therefore would not warrant transport being
provided.

2.2. A consultation on the proposed statement ran from January 2020 until April 2020. Based on the
responses to the consultation it has been understood that the circumstances presented may, in
some cases, be justified in warranting assistance with transport and that these should be
considered on a case by case basis. This is reflected in the proposed Post 16 Transport Policy
Statement.

2.3. The proposed Post 16 Transport Policy Statement for September 2020 also reflects the
feedback from respondents for the policy to be clear and easy to understand. Phrasing and
wording have been improved from previous policy statements to provide that clarity.

2.4. The Post 16 Transport Policy Statement recommended for approval ensures that Hampshire
County Council would continue to meet its statutory requirements.”

The reasons for the executive decision relate mostly to the need for clarity. There is no reference here to
the necessity tests, to potential detrimental impact, or a reduction in the provision of transport.

COVID-19 pandemic

It appears there is no reference to the coronavirus pandemic within any of the decision papers
or within the Policy.

One family we are in contact with forwarded an email by a social worker setting out the following in
response to their enquiry about transport for September 2020: “all colleges/transport e.t.c are looking at
how transport can fit in line with social distancing rules. This is across the board and is currently being
examined as it stands at the moment transport would not be provided on the basis of the risk of
transmission.”

6. Relevant law

Part 3 of the Children and Families Act 2014 created a single SEN and disability system for children and
young people aged 0-25.

Whilst there is a duty to provide school transport to “eligible” children aged 5-15 under section 508B and
Schedule 35B of the Education Act 1996 (the “Act”), there is a power to provide school transport to other
children under section 508C.

Section 15ZA(1) of Act requires “A local authority in England must secure that enough suitable
education and training is provided to meet the reasonable needs of—

(a) persons in their area who are over compulsory school age but under 19, and

(b) persons in their area who are aged 19 or over and for whom an EHC plan is maintained.”

Under section 509AC(1) a person is of sixth form age if he is over compulsory school age but—
“(a) is under the age of 19, or
(b) has begun a particular course of education or training at the establishment before attaining
the age of 19 and continues to attend that course.”

Section 508F(9) confirms that “relevant young adult” means an adult [for whom an EHC plan is
maintained] and “adult” means a person who is neither a child nor a person of sixth form age.

Section 509AA(1) of the Act creates a mandatory requirement on local authorities to prepare a

transport statement for those of sixth form age. Implicit within this duty is a discretion that the local
authority will provide transport from home to school where it deems necessary.

10
Page 118



Sub-section (2) prescribes that the statement “shall specify the arrangements for the provision of
transport or otherwise that the authority consider it necessary to make for facilitating the attendance of
persons of sixth form age receiving education or training...”

Sub-section (3) provides “The statement shall specify the arrangements that the authority consider it
necessary to make for the provision of financial assistance in respect of the reasonable travelling
expenses of persons of sixth form age receiving education or training at any establishment such as is
mentioned in subsection (2).”

Sub-section 7(b) provides that “The authority shall... make, and secure that effect is given to,
any
arrangements specified under subsections (2) and (3).”

The above can be termed the “necessity” statutory test.

Section 509AB deals with the application of section 509AA to pupils who have disabilities or learning
difficulties. It proscribes under sub-section (1) that “A statement prepared under section 509AA shall state
to what extent arrangements specified in accordance with subsection (2) of that section include
arrangements for facilitating the attendance at establishments such as are mentioned in that
subsection of disabled persons and persons with learning difficulties or disabilities.”

Sub-section (2) requires “A statement prepared under that section shall (a) specify arrangements for
persons receiving full-time education or training at establishments other than schools maintained by the
local authority which are no less favourable than the arrangements specified for pupils of the
same age attending such schools.”

Sub-section (3) and (3A) then set out a list of factors the local authority must have regard to when
“considering what arrangements it is necessary to make for the purposes mentioned in subsections (2)
and (3) of section 509AA.” These are as follows:

(@) “the needs of those for whom it would not be reasonably practicable to

attend a particular
establishment to receive education or training if no arrangements were made,

(b) the need to secure that persons in their area have reasonable opportunities to choose
between different establishments at which education or training is provided,

(ba) what they are required to do under section 15ZA(1) in relation to persons of sixth form age,

(c) the distances, and journey times, between the homes of persons of sixth form age in their area
and establishments such as are mentioned in section 509AA(2) at which education or training
suitable to their needs is provided, and

(d) the cost of transport to the establishments in question and of any alternative means of
facilitating the attendance of persons receiving education or training there.

(3A) In considering whether or not it is necessary to make arrangements for those purposes in
relation to a particular person, a local authority in England shall have regard (amongst other
things) to the nature of the route, or alternative routes, which he could reasonably be
expected to take.” (our emphasis)

Sub-section (5) proscribes that “In preparing a statement under section 509AA a local authority shall
have regard to any guidance issued under this section by the Secretary of State.”

Statutory Guidance

Statutory guidance was published in January 2019 by the Department of Education entitled “Post-16
transport and travel support to education and training: Statutory guidance for local authorities” (the
“Guidance”).

This states “Local authorities have a duty to prepare and publish an annual transport policy statement
specifying the arrangements for the provision of transport, or otherwise that the authority considers
necessary, to make to facilitate the attendance of all persons of sixth form age receiving education or
training” (paragraph 4).

10
Page 119



In goes on to set out that “The legislation therefore gives local authorities the discretion to determine what
transport and financial support are necessary to facilitate young people’s attendance. The local authority
must exercise its power to provide transport or financial support reasonably, taking into account
all relevant matters” (paragraph 16, our emphasis).

The Guidance provides “In assessing what transport arrangements or financial support may be
required, the local authority has flexibility over the decisions it makes but must have regard to
the following:

a. The needs of those for whom it would not be reasonably practicable to access education or
training provision if no arrangements were made” (paragraph 29)

Public Sector Equality Duty — section 149 of the Equality Act 2010

“Disability” is a “protected characteristic’, pursuant to s 6(1) Equality Act 2010, which defines a
disability as a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long term adverse effect on an
individual’s ability to carry out normal day to day activities. All four of our clients have disabilities.

The essential elements of the PSED as contained in section 149 are as follows:

“(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to—
(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under this Act;

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it;
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

(3) Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share
a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having due regard,
in particular, to the need to—
(@) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
(c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate in
public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons
is disproportionately low.

(4) The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different from the needs
of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons'
disabilities.”

In R (Bracking) v Secretary of State for Work and Pensions [2013] EWCA Civ 1345, the Court
of Appeal reviewed what the case law demonstrates to be the central requirements of the PSED at [25].
These included:

a. “The relevant duty is upon the Minister or other decision maker personally. What matters is what
he or she took into account and what he or she knew. Thus, the Minister or decision maker
cannot be taken to know what his or her officials know or what may have been in the minds of
officials in proffering their advice

b. A Minister must assess the risk and extent of any adverse impact and the ways in which such
risk may be eliminated before the adoption of a proposed policy and not merely as a
‘rearguard action”, following a concluded decision

c. [Gleneral regard to issues of equality is not the same as having specific regard, by way of
conscious approach to the statutory criteria.”

In Bracking, the Court of Appeal held that the decision to close the Independent Living Fund
was unlawful because the Minister had not properly understood the likely consequences of this decision

10
Page 120



when she reached her decision, and that there had not been sufficient focus on the precise statutory
requirements under the PSED, for example the need to advance equality of opportunity for disabled
people.

Section 11 of the Children Act 2004

Section 11(2)(a) of the Children Act 2004 sets out that “Each person and body to whom this section
applies must make arrangements for ensuring that their functions are discharged having regard to the
need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children”.

7. Grounds of claim
We set out below our proposed grounds of challenge.

Misdirection as to applicable statutory test

We contend that the Officer Decision Report misdirected the decision maker, the Director of
Children’s Services, as to the correct legal test for post-16 transport, rendering the decision of 27 May
unlawful. The same error is set out in the Policy itself in respect of 16 and 17 year olds, rendering it
unlawful.

As set out above the correct legal test under section 509AA(2) of the Act is to make transport
provision “that the authority consider it necessary to make for facilitating the attendance of persons of
sixth form age receiving education or training”. The officer’s report refers at times to the correct legal test,
which is whether HCC considers it necessary to provide transport in order to facilitate the sixth former’s
to access an education. However, the report is misleading in that it also refers continually to exceptional
circumstances and to “clarifying” what will not normally amount to exceptional circumstances.
This confusion runs through the whole report, Appendix 1 of the Policy in respect of

16 and 17 year olds, and contaminates the decision take on 27 May by the Director of Children’s
Services.

On 27 May the Director of Children’s Services, Mr Steve Crocker, had to reach a view as to whether he
agreed with the views of officer as set out within the report, i.e. that the specified circumstances do not
amount to exceptional circumstances on their own, thereby rendering the applicant ineligible for post-16
transport. However, “exceptional circumstances” is the wrong legal test.

This fundamental flaw in the report misled the executive decision maker, as is evident by the
reproduction of the same confusion as to the legal test in the Officer Decision Record.

Given that this confusion regarding the correct legal test is present in the report, the executive
decision, and within the Policy itself, it is impossible for families to know how the Policy will be applied in
their individual cases. Will a necessity test be applied, or an exceptional circumstances test? It is also
difficult to see how officers within HCC’s transport team will be able to take lawful decisions
under this Policy to decide transport applications for 16 or 17 year olds in light of this fundamental
confusion. Therefore there is a real risk that 16 and 17 year olds who require transport because it is
necessary in order to access an education will be wrongly refused transport.

Failure to have regard to a mandatory consideration

Section 509AB sets out a list of mandatory considerations HCC must have regard to when
considering what transport arrangements are necessary. At section 509AB(3)(a) the following
mandatory consideration is set out: “the needs of those for whom it would not be reasonably
practicable to attend a particular establishment to receive education or training if no arrangements
were made”.

All four of our clients fall within this category, in that it would not be reasonably practicable for them to
attend their colleges to receive an education if no transport arrangements were made by HCC.

The following consideration at section 509AB(3)(ba) is also mandatory: “what they are required to do

10
Page 121



under section 15ZA(1) in relation to persons of sixth form age”. Section 15ZA(1) sets out the duty on local
authorities to secure suitable educational provision for sixth formers with SEND. Without transport,
our clients will not be able to access an education.

Nowhere in the papers for the decision are the mandatory considerations at section 509AB(3)(a) set out.
Nor is there any explanation of the considerations set out within the Guidance, which also
requires HCC to consider “The needs of those for whom it would not be reasonably practicable
to access education or training provision if no arrangements were made” (paragraph 29).

We consider that if the decision maker, the Director of Children’s Services, had known about these
mandatory considerations, and if his attention was drawn to the Guidance, he may have made
a different decision regarding the changes to the Policy on 27 May.

Failing to promote the objects of the Act

HCC’s Policy failing cuts across the objects of the 1996 Act (as per Padfield v Minister of Agriculture
[1968] AC 997) by assuming that parents of 16 and 17 year olds should provide transport even if this
would interfere with their ability to work or transport siblings to school, despite there being no legal duty
on parents to do so once their children are above compulsory school age. This ignores the
necessity test as imposed by statute, because where parents are unable or unwilling to provide
transport (for any reason) then it will be necessary for the local authority to do so.

Paragraph 6 of the Guidance summarises the purpose of the Act: “The overall intention of the sixth form
age transport duty is to ensure that:

learners of sixth form age are able to access the education and training of their choice; and

if support for access is requested, this will be assessed and provided where necessary.”

Rather than ensuring that all learners are able to access an education, and providing transport where
necessary to access this education, HCC’s Policy renders 16 and 17 years olds as ineligible for
transport in many common circumstances, such as where parents cannot provide transport due to
their working hours. Whilst HCC is entitled to reach its own view as to what transport is necessary to
provide in individual cases, the Policy and decisions made under it must be compatible with the
statutory scheme.

Irrationality

In R (Law Society) v Lord Chancellor [2018] EWHC 2094 (Admin), the Divisional Court described
irrationality as follows (at [98]): “The second ground on which the Lord Chancellor's Decision is
challenged encompasses a number of arguments falling under the general head of “irrationality” or, as it
is more accurately described, unreasonableness. This legal basis for judicial review has two
aspects. The first is concerned with whether the decision under review is capable of being justified or
whether in the classic Wednesbury formulation it is “so unreasonable that no reasonable authority
could ever have come to it”> see Associated Provincial Picture Houses Ltd v Wednesbury Corpn
[1948] 1 KB 223, 233-234. Another, simpler formulation of the test which avoids tautology is whether
the decision is outside the range of reasonable decisions open to the decision-maker: see e ¢
Boddington v British Transport Police [1999] 2 AC 143 , 175, per Lord Steyn. The second aspect of
irrationality/unreasonableness is concerned with the process by which the decision was reached. A
decision may be challenged on the basis that there is a demonstrable flaw in the reasoning which led to
it—for example, that significant reliance was placed on an irrelevant consideration, or that there
was no evidence to support an important step in the reasoning, or that the reasoning involved
a serious logical or methodological error. ...”

There are therefore two key aspects of irrationality / unreasonableness in public authority decision
making for present purposes:
1. Taking a decision which is outside the range of reasonable decisions open to the decision
maker; and
2. Taking a decision where there is a demonstrable flaw in the reasoning which led to it.

We contend that both aspects of irrationality / unrefaonableness are present in this case. The Policy

Page 122



presumes that parents have a responsibility to provide transport to their children even though there is no
legal duty on them to do so (i.e. for children above compulsory school age) and in circumstances where
they are in fact unable to do so (e.g. due to work commitments). The Policy applies the wrong legal test
in respect of 16 and 17 year olds, which is unlawful for the reasons set out above. In R (B) v
Worcestershire CC [2009] EWHC 2915 (Admin), a case concerning a local authority’s decision
to close a day care centre, at [98] the Judge (again Stadlen J) held that “when this decision was taken
the Council was not in a position at the time it took the decision to reach a rational conclusion that the
staff availability and facilities under the new arrangement would be sufficient as reasonably to lead to the
conclusion that they would meet the needs of the claimants. That being so, in my view, the
decision should be quashed.” The same applies in the present case, because without transport our clients
cannot access their education. It is irrational to take the position that parent carers’ work and/or other
commitments will not alone make the 16 or 17 year old eligible for transport. The work and other
commitments of parents is patently a critical consideration when determining whether it is necessary for
HCC to provide transport and yet the Policy expresses excludes these circumstances.

The decision of 27 May was also irrational in that HCC failed to ask the right questions and
take reasonable steps to gain the relevant information to answer them, breaching the well-known principle
from Secretary of State for Education and Science v Tameside MBC [1977] AC 1014. HCC failed to ask
a highly relevant question, which is whether without the provision of transport sixth formers will still be
able to attend college. For the reasons set out above, this question goes to the heart of the legal
framework regarding post-16 transport, and yet HCC failed to ask itself this question when the new Policy
was adopted.

Breach of the Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010

HCC anticipates that the changes introduced by the Policy will result in the cost of post-16 transport
reducing by more than half. It is clear that savings of this magnitude will not be achieved without many of
the approximately 300 families who currently access transport losing that provision. Yet HCC has failed
to identify any possible negative impact on disabled young people.

The executive decision to approve the Policy on 27 May 2019 is in breach of HCC’s duty to have due
regard to the needs mandated under the PSED, being the need to “eliminate discrimination,
harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act” and to
“advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it” (sections 149(1)(a) and (b) of the Equality Act 2010).

Whilst HCC gathered relevant information from students and families as to how the changes would
impact them through its consultation process, there was no attempt in the EIA (or anywhere else in the
report) to quantify or analyse the impact of the Policy on disabled students or set out how this detrimental
impact could be mitigated.

No analysis has been conducted regarding how many students will be affected or how they will be able
to access an education without transport. Due to the failure by HCC to identify detrimental impact on
disabled teenagers, on 27 May 2020 the Director for Children’s Services did not have any of the
information he required regarding what detrimental impact the Policy would have on disabled
students.

As a result of the failings detailed above, the 27 May 2020 decision was in clear breach of the
requirements of the PSED.

Failure to discharge section 11 of the Children Act 2004

HCC has a duty to comply with section 11 of the Children Act 2004 in respect of sixth formers who are
under 18 (i.e. our first two clients).

In taking the decision on 27 May the Director for Children’s Services failed to discharge his duty under

section 11 of the 2004 Act given the omission to consider the impact on children’s welfare of
the changes to the Policy.

11
Page 123



Section 11 of the 2004 Act requires HCC to ensure that its “functions are discharged having regard to
the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children”. It is not merely a target duty. As
the Supreme Court has clarified, it applies “not only to the formulation of general policies and practices,
but also to their application in an individual case” (Lady Hale at [24] in Nzolameso v Westminster City
Council [2015] UKSC 22 at [37]). This requires that the welfare of children is “actively promoted”
through decision-making (see Lady Hale in R (HC) v Secretary of State for Work and Pensions [2017]
UKSC 73 at [46]).

Further, it is clear from R (E) v Islington LBC [2017] EWHC 1440 (Admin) (applying Nzolameso) that
discharge of the duty in section 11(2)(a) must be properly evidenced, with the relevant public body
“‘required to record and provide evidence of the factors they have taken into account, and the process by
which their decision was made” (at [107]); similarly, it: “must be in a position to demonstrate, by reference
to written contemporaneous records, the process of reasoning by which it reached its decision. A
court should not assume in favour of a local authority that it has performed its functions in a conscientious
and lawful manner. Judicial scrutiny requires an objective and evidence-based analysis of the
decision-making process” (at [114] — Ben Emmerson QC sitting as a Deputy High Court Judge).

In this case there is no evidence whatsoever, whether in the decision-making documentation or
otherwise, that any consideration was given to the implications for children’s welfare of the changes to
the Policy. The likely effect of the changes to Appendix 1 of the Policy is to reduce transport provision to
sixth formers with SEND. This can only have a negative impact these learners with SEND and their
welfare. In order to discharge the duty in section 11 of the 2004 Act HCC was required to have regard to,
and therefore acknowledge, this negative impact and consider how it might be addressed. HCC did not
do so.

Failure to conduct a lawful consultation

We contend that the 8 May 2019 decision was unlawful because it was taken pursuant to an unfair and
unlawful consultation process.

The Defendant conducted a consultation on the Policy and therefore it was obliged to consult fairly; see
R (Moseley) v LB Haringey [2014] UKSC 56 per Lord Wilson at [23] where, as here, the proposal is to
withdraw a benefit the requirements of fairness are higher; see Moseley at [26].

We contend that HCC’s consultation process was unfair and unlawful because the questions put to
respondents concerned the wrong legal test. Families and SEND providers were asked to comment on
what circumstances would not alone amount to exceptional circumstances. However the correct legal
test for post-16 transport is that of necessity. The policy changes consulted on are unlawful for all the
reasons set out in this letter before action, and a consultation process regarding an unlawful policy cannot
itself be lawful.

HCC also failed to consult on the changes to Appendix 1 in respect of 18 year olds. There were no
questions at all in the consultation document about these changes. Furthermore, the consultation
information pack is misleading in that at page 15 it is said: “When a child turns 18, they would be able to
apply for transport to attend their place of education or training, with no expectation that their parent or
carer would assist with arranging their transport.” However, Appendix 1 of the Policy sets out in respect
of 18 year olds that “The Council expects that parents and carers take responsibility for facilitating
their child’s attendance in education.” Families affected by this change, such as our clients
and were not consulted about this change at all.

Unlawful policy due to uncertainty

HCC’s Policy is unlawful due to the fundamental uncertainty created by the changes approved on 27
May, applying R (Grogan) v Bexley NHS Care Trust [2006] EWHC 44 (Admin) at 91, 94.

In the book ‘Judicial Review: Principles and Procedure’ by Jonathan Auburn, this error of law is
described as follows “A policy is likely to be unlawful if it is so uncertain that no ascertainable meaning
can be ascribed to it or if it is so unclear in effect that it is incapable of certain application in any case”

11
Page 124



(page 475).

We contend that HCC’s Policy in respect of 18 years is so unclear that it is incapable of certain
application in any case. The Policy amounts to two sentences which are contradictory in meaning.
The first sentence sets out an expectation that parents should provide transport, and the second
sentence sets out that HCC does not expect parents to provide transport:

“(d) Necessity: The Council expects that parents and carers take responsibility for facilitating their
child’s attendance in education. However, the authority will take into account that the
authority cannot expect a parent to support their adult child’s transport arrangement.”

Despite the subheading ‘necessity’ this is not a description of the legal test of necessity.

This Policy is so unclear that families reading it would have no idea whether or not HCC would be likely
to provide transport to their 18 year old child.

8. Steps which the defendant is required to take

In view of these submissions, we request that within 7 days, i.e. by 12noon on 9 June 2020, the local
authority provides a formal response under the pre-action protocol for judicial view, confirming that the
local authority will:

1. Review the 2020/21 Policy and take a new decision on an urgent basis so that decisions for
transport for September 2020 will be taken under a lawful post-16 transport policy;

2. Confirm that a copy of this letter before action will be provided to the executive
decision maker when he/she comes to review HCC’s post-16 transport policy;

3. Confirm whether and how the coronavirus pandemic will impact on HCC’s post-16 transport
provision.

If the above is not agreed, please confirm whether HCC agrees to an expedited court timetable for this
matter including a rolled up hearing, so that the judicial review claim is determined as quickly as possible.
We consider that this matter is very urgent as applications for transport for 2020 are now open and our
clients require transport in order to access an education from September.

9. Details of information sought and documents considered relevant and necessary

Please provide the following information in accordance with the pre-action protocol:

a. Any information or documents relating to the impact of the coronavirus pandemic on the
Policy; and
b. Any other document on which the local authority intends to rely.

10. Alternative dispute resolution

We confirm that we are willing to consider any form of ADR the local authority proposes, subject to legal
aid funding being available for our clients and the local authority agreeing to take all the steps listed at 8
above.

ling with thi

Brunel House

21 Brunswick Place
Southampton
S015 2AQ

11
Page 125



12. Proposed reply date

12 noon on 9 June 2020

In the absence of a satisfactory response within the above timescale, we may be instructed to take steps
to issue judicial review proceedings and may seek interim relief. Should such steps be necessary,
we also place you on notice of our intention to seek to recover our costs in accordance with the guidance
in M v London Borough of Croydon [2012] EWCA Civ 595.

Yours faithfully

For and on behalf of Irwin Mitchell LLP

11
Page 126



	Agenda
	1 Proposed Changes to Post 16 Transport Policy Statement 2020

